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PART 1 — BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1 - Business

{a) Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (hereafter Company or KPH) was incorporated in July

1975 under the former name of Keppel Philippines Shipyard, Inc. The Company was
established as a subsidiary of Keppel Corporation Ltd. (KCL) of Singapore to carry out ship
repair and shipbuilding activities in the Philippines. [n 1993, the Company was converted
into an investment holding company under the name of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.
KPH shares are being traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

Currently, KPH has two core businesses: namely, investment holdings and real estate.

(b) The Company is not involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings.

(c) There is no material reclassification, merger, consolidation, purchase or sale of a significant

amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business.

(d) The Company does not have any patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises, concessions,

and/or royalty agreements.

(e) As an investment holding company, KPH only has five (5) regular employees from 2013 to

H

2015, There is no collective bargaining agreement between the Company and the
employees.

Brief Description of Business

KPH has two main business segments: Investment Holdings and Real Estate. The
contribution from each segment of the businesses to the consolidated revenues and net
income of the Company is stated in Note 20 of the audited financial statements.

Real Estate

The Company owns office space at Fedman Suites, while KPSI Property, Inc. (KPS]), a
wholly owned subsidiary of KPH, owns and leases out the office spaces in Country Space |
Building at Makati City and at Keppel Center, Cebu City. Goodwealth Realty
Development Corp. (GRDC), 51% owned by KPH, owns and leases parcels of land and
improvements in Batangas City. Goodsoil Marine Realty, Ine, (GMRI), wholly owned by
GRDC and effectively 51% owned by KPH, owns and leases the land in Bauan, Batangas to
Keppel Philippines Marine Inc. (KPMI) used for the construction and repair of all types and
classes of vessels together with the related services and operations of a shipyard. GMRI is
a PEZA-registered Ecozone Developer/Operator since 2007. Consort Land, Inc. (CLD),
25% owned by GMRI and effectively 13% owned by KPH, owns and leases the land in
Subic, Zambales to Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. (KSSI) used for the construction and repair
of all types and classes of vessels. CLI also manages and operates the Subic Shipyard-
special Export Processing Zone and distribute power to locators in Subic Shipyard Marine
Industrial park.



2 - Properties

KPH Group owns the following properties:

Owned by Property Description Area

Two (2) office condominium units at Fedman Suite

KPH in Makati City 166 sqm
Six (6) office condominium units at Country Space [

KPSl Building in Makati City 1,204 sqm
One (1) office condominium unit at Keppel Center

KPSI in Cebu City 206 sgm

GRDC Five (5) lots of residential land in Batangas City 1,500 sqm

GRDC Two (2) residential land and improvement 409 sqm

GMRI Land located in Bauan, Batangas 249,584 sqm

CLI Land and building located in Subic, Zambales 721,456 sqm

The properties owned by the Company and its subsidiary and associates are free from any lien.

3 - Legal Proceedings

In September 2003, the Company filed a complaint against Philippine National Qil Company
(PNOC) for specific performance with the Regional Trial Court in Batangas City for the
enforcement of the contract relating to the option to purchase parcels of land in Batangas.
Judgment was rendered in January 2006 in favor of the Company ordering PNOC to accept the
payment of £4.1 million, which was consigned with the Clerk of Court, as full and complete
payment of the purchase price, and to execute a Deed of Absolute Sale in favor of the
Company. PNOC, however, filed an appeal with the Court of Appeals (CA). The CA
dismissed PNOC’s appeal in December 2011. In July 2012, PNOC filed a petition with the
Supreme Court (SC) for review on certiorari of the decision of the CA. In November 2013, the
Company filed a Motion to Resolve with the SC to ask for an early resolution and issue an
order dismissing the petition. The case is still outstanding as at December 31, 2015,

In July 2007, the Company and PNOC signed a compromise agreement wherein both parties
agreed to increase the price to 6.lmillion. The compromise agreement is still pending
approval by the Office of the Solicitor General as of December 31, 2015. Given the length of
time that had lapsed, it is unlikely that the Compromise Agreement will be approved.

4 - Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the third and fourth quarter
of the fiscal year covered by the report. The last meeting of the Company’s stockholders was
the annual stockholders’ meeting, which was held on June 19, 2015.



PART 1l - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

5 -Market Price _of and Bividends on Resistrant’s Common Equity and Related
Stockholder Matters

{a} Market Information

The principal market of the Company’s common equity is the Philippine Stock
Exchangc (PSE) where it was listed on 26 August 1987, The high and low closing
prices for cach quarter within the last two (2) fiscal years and first quarter of 2016 as
traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange are as follows:

STOCK 2015 2014
PRICES
High Low High Low
First Quarter ‘AR50 ‘A7 R5.00 ‘A’ R4.99 ‘AT B4.47
‘B’ R5.30 ‘B’ P4.82 ‘B’ £5.00 ‘B’ £4.90
Second Quarter ‘A’ PR6.60 ‘AT B5.00 ‘AT R5.08 ‘AT P3.42
‘BT R9.00 ‘B* P4.80 ‘B” P6.66 ‘B* P3.52
Third Quarter AT P6.T8 ‘A7 B3.60 ‘AT B6.00 ‘AT B451
‘B’ £4.99 ‘B’ 24.99 ‘B’ £6.99 ‘B’ 424
Fourth Quarter ‘AT B6.50 ‘A’ P3.70 ‘AT R5.20 AT 441
‘B’ 2499 ‘B” £4.99 ‘B 25,10 ‘B” 24.30
2016
High Low
First Quarter ‘AT P89S AT P4.01
‘B’ R7.48 ‘B’ B4.99

(b) Holders
The number of sharcholders of record as of December 31, 2015 was 433.

Commnion shares outstanding as of December 31, 2015 were 60,367 419 broken down as

follows:
Nationality | Class | No. of Shares |Percentage
Filipino - A A 38,730,970 64.16
Filipino - B B 3,869,458 6.41
Foreign B 17,766,991 29.43
Total 60,367,419 100.00

(95



The top 20 stockholders as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

No. of
Shareholder Shares Held %o
1. Kepwealth, Inc. 26,807,533 | 44.407
2. Keppel Corporation Litd. 16,894,082 | 27.985
3. |PCD Nominee Corp. — Filipino 13,067,014 | 21.646
4. |International Container Terminal Services, Inc, 2,121,287 | 3.514
5. |PCD Nominee Corp. — Foreign 604,916 | 1.002
6. [Soh Ngoi May 83,179 | 0.138
7. |Willy Y. C. Lim 60,175 | 0.100
8. |Edbert G. Tantuco 50,017 | 0.083
9. [New Court Nominees Ltd. 49,779 | 0.082
10. [El Observatorio De Manila 45,070 | 0.075
11, [Emilio C. Tiu 23,238 | 0.038
12. |National Book Store, Inc. 22,422 | 0.037
13. JAng Guan Piao 21,900 | 0.036
14. iManolo Z, Alcasabas 21,170 | 0.035
15. [Willy Yew Chai Lim 20,085 | 0.033
16. |Yeo Chee Chiow 18,848 | 0.031
17. [Liwayway Sy 17,938 | 0.030
18. [Ma. Victoria R. Del Rosario 17,938 | 0.030
19. |Ramon R, Del Rosario Jr. 17,938 | 0.030
20. |Dr. Victorino Medrano Jr. &/or Ofelia R. Medrano 13,952 | 0.023

(¢) Dividends

The declaration and payment of dividends will depend, among others, upon the
Company’s earnings, cash flow, capital requirements and financial condition in addition
to other factors. Cash dividends are subject to approval by the Board of Directors but no
stockholders’ approval is required. Dividends are payable to stockholders whose names
are recorded in the stock and transfer books as of the record date fixed by the Board. The
Company declared cash dividends in 2013, 2014 and 2013. Details of cash dividend are
as follows:

Y2015 Y2014 Y2013
Date of BOD Approval June 19 May 28 June 6
Record Date July 6 June 13 June 21
Payment Date July 30 July 9 July 17
Amount of Dividend per Share | B0.10 or 10% | £0.10 or 10% | £0.10 or 10%

(d) Recent Sales of Unregistered Sceurities

There has been no sale of securities within the past three years which were not registered
under the SRC. Neither is there any claim for exemption from registration made by the
Company.



6 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended 2015

Results for the Year

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPH) recorded a net income of £26.9 million in 2015 as
against £26.2 million in 2014 and £20.8 million in 2013. The Company achieved revenues of
£45.0 million this year as against B45.1 million in 2014, and R44.7million in 2013. Revenues
in 2015 were mainly from rental income, equity share in net earnings of associates, interest
income, and management fees.

The Company realized rental revenue of B19.4 million, £19.3 million and B18.8 million in
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, brought by increase in rental rate. The equity share in net
earnings of associate, Consort Land, Inc. (CLI), as of December 31, 2015 of B14.8 million was
tower than in 2014 of £20.0 million and in 2013 of B17.9 million. This was brought by lower
income realized by CLI in 2015. The Company received cash dividend from CLI amounting to
£17.5 million in 2015 and B14.0 million in 2014 and stock dividend of 6,549,823 shares in
2013.

The Company carned interest income of 9.6 million in 2015, 4.7 million in 2014 and £6.9 in
2013. Out of the £9.6 million interest earned by the Company in 2015, #8.0 million came from
interest on loan granted to related party and £1.6 million from short-term deposits. In 2014,
interest on loan to related party amounted to £2.0 million and nil in 2013. Interest earned from
short-term deposits went down to 1.6 million this year from 22,7 million in 2014 and B6.9
million in 2013. This was due to the decrease in short term deposits brought by the payment of
dividends and granting of loans to related company

Management fees charged to related parties amounted to £1.2 million in 2015, 2014, and 2013,

Operating expenses in 2015 amounted to B16.7 million, 8% lower as against #18.2 million in
2014, and 23% lower as against £21.7 million in 2013. Lower expenses in 2015 was brought
by a) lower provision of impairment losses relating to input VAT and withholding tax
receivable of 0.3 million in 2015 as against 20.5 million in 2014 and £3.3 million in 2013,
and b) lower depreciation expense in 2015 amounting to 0.4 million as against £1.8 million in
2014 and B2.3 million in 2013. The decrease was partiaily offset by higher personnel expenses
of £7.0 million in 2015 as against £6.6 million in 2014 and 26.7 million in 2013 and provision
for impairment on investment in an associate of 0.2 million this year.

The Company generated other income of £3.3 million this year as against 21.9 million in 2014
and R0.4 million in 2013. The increase was brought by recovery of provision for impairment
losses relating to withholding tax receivable of 82.0 million, reversal of prior years’ accrual
amounting to B0.7 million and commission earned from joint venture agreement with related
company of £0.3 million.

The Company realized other comprehensive income from fair value gain adjustment on AFS
financial assets of £0.8 million as against nil in 2014 and fair value loss of 1.5 million in 2013.

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 amounted to B55.1
million as against same period last year of B127.9 million. The decrease of 57% or R72.8
million was brought mainly by the loan granted to a related company of £100.0 million and
dividend payment of 14.2 million by the Parent Company and a subsidiary. This was offset by
receipt of £18.2 million dividends, receipt of £12.5 million as first installment payment of long-



term loan, receipt of interest income from loans and short-term deposits of 29,3 million and net
cash provided by cperating activities of 1.5 million.

Total receivables this year amounted to £324.2 million as against last year of £236.1 million.
The increase was by brought mainly by £100.0 million short-term loan with 90-day, interest
bearing of 2.9% to 3.4% granted to related company, increase in interest receivable of £0.8
million in 2015 from £0.5 million in 2014 and increase in other receivables of B1.2 million as
against last year of 20.2 million. The increase was partially offset by first installment payment
of £12.5 million of the B200 million long-term loan granted in 2014,

Other current assets increased to £1.0 this year as against £0.2 million in 2014. The increase
was due primarily to net recovery of provision for fully impaired creditable withholding tax and
input VAT of 1.7 million. This was offset by lower creditable withholding tax as of December
31,2015 of B2.1 million as against 3.0 million in 2014,

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share as of December 2015 and 2014
amounted to £15.8 million and B15.0 million, respectively. Investment in an associate
decreased from £419.6 million in 2014 to £416.0 million this year. The decrease was due
primarily to lower equity share in net income of CLI of £14.9 million this year as against £20.0
million 2014. The share was reduced by the cash dividend received from CLI this year
amounting to 217.5 million as against £14.0 million in 2014 and provision for impairment on
investment in an associate of 0.2 million this year. Investment properties and Property and
equipment decreased from B210.4 million in 2014 to B209.9 million this period due to
depreciation. There were no major purchases made in 2015 and 2014,

Total liabilities decreased from £7.9 million in 2014 to B7.4 million this year. The slight
decrease was due to reversal of accruals and provisions.

Total equity as of December 31, 2015 amounted to £1,018.8 million and £1,005.3 million in
December 2014. Retained earnings amounted to B430.7 million as of December 2015 as
compared to £423.5 million in 2014. The increase was due to net income after non-controlling
interests of £13.2 million partially offset by cash dividend of B6.0 million.

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to B582.4 million and B574.4
million as of December 2015 and 2014, respectively. The net book value per share as of
December 2015 was B9.65 as against same period last year of 89.52. The earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the parent as of December 2015 and 2014 were £0.22 and
£0.20, respectively.

Year Ended 2014

Results for the Year

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPH) recorded a net income of £26.2 million in 2014 as
against £20.8 million in 2013 and R158.1 million in 2012. The Company achieved revenues of
$£45.1 million this year as against £44.7 million in 2013, and £126.3 million in 2012. Revenues
in 2014 were mainly from equity share in net earnings of an associate, rental income, interest
income, and management fees.

The Company realized an equity share in net earnings of associates of B20.0 million as of
December 31, 2014 as against in 2013 of R17.9 million and in 2012 of 877.2 miilion. The 2012
share earnings arose from the realized gain on the upstream sale to GMRI amounting to R72.5
million and equity share in net earnings of associates of 4.7 million.



The rental revenue this year amounted to R19.3 million, 2% higher than in 2013 of R18.8
million and 8% higher than in 2012 of B17.9 million due to increase in rental rate,

The Company earned interest income of 24,7 million where in 2.7 million came from short-
term deposits and £2.0 million came from the long-term loan of £200.0 million granted to a
related company last September 2014, Interest income from short term deposits went down to
2.7 million this year from £6.9 million in 2013 and B14.6 million in 2012. This was due
decrease in short term deposits brought by the payment of dividends and the drop of the annual
interest rates ranging from 1.0% to 1.4% in 2014 as against 1.0% to 3.5% in 2013 and 3.5% to
4.6% in 2012.

Management fees charged to related parties amounted to 1.2 million this year and in 2013 as
against £0.6 million in 2012. The Company received from an associate, CLI, cash dividend of
B14.0 million in 2014, stock dividend of 6,549,823 shares in 2013 and cash dividend of 216.0
million in 2012 prior to step-acquisition of CLI by GMRI.

Operating expenses in 2014 amounted to £18.2 million, lower by 16% as against B21.7 million
in 2013. Higher expenses were incurred in 2013 primarily due to £3.3 million provisions for
impairment losses relating to input VAT and withholding tax receivables. Operating expenses
in 2014 was 6% higher than in 2012 of R17.2 million. This was due to higher personnel
expenses, professional fees, taxes and licenses partially offset by lower depreciation expenses,
membership dues and subscriptions.

The Company generated other income of £1.9 million this year as against £0.4 mitlion in 2013
and P52.8 million in 2012. The increase in 2014 as against 2013 was due to recovery of
provision for impairment losses of B0.8 million and reversal of prior years® accrual amounting
to £0.9 million. Higher income in 2012 of B52.8 million came from realized gain on purchase
of investment in an associate.

The Company did not realize other comprehensive income from fair value gain or loss
adjustment on AFS financial assets this year as against fair value loss of B1.5 million in 2013
and gain of £5.3 million in 2012. The unrealized gain of B72.5 million in 2011 from dividend
distributed by Goodwealth Ventures, Inc. (GVI) from its income generated from the sale of its
investments in CLI was realized in 2012,

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2014 amounted to £127.9
million as against same period last year of £312.3 million. The decrease of 59% or R184.4
million was brought mainly by the loan granted to a related company of B200.0 million and
dividend payment of B8.5 million by the Parent Company and a subsidiary. This was offset by
higher lease rental yield and collection.

Receivables-current portion increased from B2.0 million in 2013 to B13.2 million this year.
This was brought mainly by the recognition of B13.0 million current portion of B200.0 million
long-term granted to a related company. Other current assets decreased from £0.5 million in
2013 to R0.2 million this year. The decrease was due primarily to fully impaired creditable
withholding tax.

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share as of December 2014 and 2013
amounted to 15.0 million. Investment in an associate increased from B413.6 million in 2013
to #419.6 million this year due primarily to equity share in net income of CLI of B20.0 million
this year as against £17.9 million 2013. The share was reduced by the cash dividend received
from CLI this year amounting to £14.0 million. Investment properties and Property and
equipment decreased from £212.1 million in 2013 to £210.4 million this period due to
depreciation. There were no major purchases made in 2014.

7



Current liabilities decreased from £6.3 million in 2012 to £6.2 million this year. The slight
decrease was due to reversal of accruals and provisions.

Total equity was £1,005.3 million in December 2014 and £987.6 million in December 2013.
Retained earnings amounted to £423.5 million as of December 2014 as compared with 2417.3
million in 2013. The increase was due to net income after non-controlling interests of B12.3
million partially offset by cash dividend of 26.0 million, as compared to £9.2 million in 2013,

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to £574.4 million and R568.2
million as of December 2014 and 2013, respectively. The net book value per share as of
December 2014 was £9.52 as against same period last year of £9.41. The earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the parent as of December 2014 and 2013 were 20.20 and
R0.15, respectively.

Year Ended 2013

Results for the Year

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (KPH) recorded a net income of £20.8 million in 2013 as
against £158.1 million in 2012 and B511.3 million in 2011, The Company achieved revenues
of £44.7 million this year as against RB126.3 million in 2012, and B33.4 million in 2011.
Revenues in 2013 were mainly from equity share in net earnings of an associate, rental income,
interest income, and management fees.

The rental revenue this year amounted to £18.8 million which was 5% higher than in 2012 of
£17.9 million and 2% higher than in 2011 of £18.5 million due to increase in rental rate and
100% occupancy. The Company realized equity share in net earnings of associates of B17.9
million as of December 31, 2013 as against in 2012 of 277.2 million which came from the
realized gain on the upstream sale to GMRI amounting to £72.5 million and equity share in net
earnings of associates of £4.7 million. Interest income this year went down to B6.9 million
from B14.6 million in 2012 and 212.2 million in 2011, This was due decrease in short term
deposits brought by the payment of dividends and decrease in interest annual rates ranging from
1.0% to 3.5% in 2013, 3.5% to 4.6% in 2012 and 3.4% to 4.1% in 2011. Management fees
charged to related parties amounted to B1.2 million this year as against R0.6 million both in
2012 and 20f1. The Company did not receive cash dividend income from CLI this year as
against £16.0 million and 2.1 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Operating expenses in 2013 amounted to £21.7 million, higher by 26% as compared to 2012 of
£17.2 million and 22% higher than in 2011 of B17.7 million. Higher expenses were incurred in
2013 primarily due to £3.3 million provisions for impairment losses relating to input VAT and
withholding tax receivables. There was no interest expense incurred in 2013 and 2012 due to
full payment of GMRI’s loan with KPMI in January 2012 as against £1.8 million interests paid
in 2011,

The Company generated other income of B0.4 million this year as against 252.8 million and
£501.4 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. In 2011, the Company generated a gain of
£500.3 million from the disposal of shares in KCSLI. Also in 2011, when GVI sold its shares
in CLI to GMRI, the Company recorded unrealized gain on the net income of GVI amounting to
£72.5 million since the transaction was an upstream sale to GMRI which was reported under
“Other Comprehensive Income”. This unrealized gain on upstream sale to GMRI was then
realized in 2012 and was included as part of the equity share in net earnings of associates as
mentioned above. The realized gain was due to the increase in shareholdings of GMRI in CLI
from 18% to 25% when GMRI availed CLI’s right issue and purchased additional shares from
KPMI. The increase in sharcholdings also resulted to the reclassification of its investment in
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CLI from AFS financial assets to investment in an associate. The step-acquisition resulted to a
total gain on purchase of an investment in an associate amounting to B52.2 million from fair
value adjustments,

Other comprehensive income from unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial assets on
quoted share amounted to loss of 1.5 million this year as against gain of 5.3 million and R0.2
million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The unrealized gain of B72.5 million in 2011 from
dividend distributed by GVI from its income generated from the sale of its investments in CLI
was realized in 2012.

Financial Condition

The cash position of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013 amounted to B312.3
million as against same period last year of £308.8 million. The increase of B3.5 million was
brought mainly by the higher lease rental yield and interest income from short term deposits.
This was offset by dividend payment of £6.0 million last July 2013.

Receivables and other current assets decreased from B5.2 million in 2012 to £2.4 million this
year. The decrease was due primarily to provisions for impairment losses relating to input VAT
and withholding tax receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets related to a quoted club share as of December 2013 amounted
to 215.0 million as compared to last year of £16.5 million. Investment in an associate increased
from £395.7 million in 2012 to £413.6 million this year due to equity share of 217.9 million in
net income of CLI this year as against P4.8 million from September to December 2012,
Investment properties and Property and equipment decreased from B214.4 million in 2012 to
#212.1 million this period due to depreciation. There were no purchases made in 2013,

Current liabilities increased from B5.4 million in 2012 to B6.3 million this year. The increase
was due to increase in rental deposits and higher accrual of operating expenses.

Total equity was £987.6 million in December 2013 and £974.3 million in December 2012.
Retained earnings amounted to £417.3 million as of December 2013 as compared with R414.1
million in 2012. The increase was due to net income of £9.2 million after non-controlling
interests partially offset by cash dividend of B6.0 million or R0.10 per share released to
stockholders last July 17, 2013, as per record date of June 21, 2013. There was also a decrease
in unrealized cumulative gain of AFS financial assets by B1.5 due to decrease in market price of
a club share from £16.5 million in 2012 to £15.0 million in 2013.

The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to 568.2 million and B566.5
million as of December 2013 and 2012, respectively. The net book value per share as of
December 2013 was £9.41 as against same period last year of 89.38. The basic/diluted earnings
per share as of December 2013 and 2012 were £0.15 and £1.92, respectively.

Plan of Action for 2015

KPH shall focus on maintaining and adding value on its investment properties. Among others,
the strategies may include purchase of shares of stock, purchase of additional investment
properties, increasing occupancy and rental rates. Certain properties may be considered for sale
where it can contribute the best value to the Company and its shareholders. Investment
properties of strategic value shall be reviewed for further investments where appropriate,



Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators of the Company for the last three (3) fiscal years arc follows:

Particulars 2015 2014 2013
Current Ratio
(Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 37.01 22.90 49 58
Actd Test Ratio or Quick Ratio
(Monctary Current Asscts/Current Liabilities) 36.83 22.87 4930
Solvency Ratio
(Nct Income + Depreciation)/Total Liabilitics 3.72 3.52 2.82
Asscts to Equity Ratio 1.01 1.01 1.01
Dcbt Ratio
(Total Liabilitics/Total Assets) 0.01 0.01 0.01
Debt to Equity Ratio
(Total Liabilitics/Stockholders' Equity) 0.01 0.01 0.01
Return on Asscets (%)
{(Net Income/Total Assets 2.62 2.39 2.09
Retum on Equity (%)
(Net Income/Stockholders™ Equity 2.64 2.61 2.10
Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders
of Parent () 0.22 0.20 0.15

There are no known cvents that may trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation that was not
disclosed.  Therc arc no material off-balance sheet transactions, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unsolicited entitics or
other persons created during the reporting period that has not been disclosed. The Company has
no material commitment for capital expenditures for the next 12 months that would nced to
raise or generate funds for.

There arc no trends, cvents or uncertainties that may have a material effect or impact, whether
favorable or unfavorable, on the revenucs or income from continuing operations of the
Company. The financial condition or results of operations of the Company is not affected by
any scasonal change.

7 - Financial Statements

The audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015
and schedules listed in the accompanying ladex to Financial Statements and Supplementary
Schedules are filed as part of this Form 17-A.

The financial statcments attached to the report include the audited statements of financial
position, statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
stockholders™ equity, statements of cash flows and notes to the financial statements.  Such
rcports form part of the attachment to the SEC Annual Report Form 17-A.
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8 - Information on Independent Accountants and Other Related Matters

(2)

(b)

External Audit Fees and Services

(i} Audit and Related Fees - The Company retains the previous year’s auditors, SyCip
Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) to audit the current year’s financial statements. The
aggregate fee billed by SGV for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements
was £350,000 for 2015, B320,000 for 2014, and 2310,000 for 2013. There were no other
services performed by SGV for each of the last three fiscal years. The services performed
by the Company’s external auditors and the fees are reviewed by the Audit Committee
prior to submission to the Board of Directors for approval.

(ii) Tax Fees ~No tax fees were paid for the years 2015, 2014 and 2013.

(iii) Other Fees — No other fees were paid for the years 2015, 2014 and 2013.

(iv) Audit Committee’s Approval Policies & Procedures — The Committee evaluates
proposals based on the quality of service, commitment for deadline and fees. The

Committee may require a presentation from each proponent to clarify some issues.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

Accounting standards in accordance with PFRS are stated in Note 2 to the financial
statements. For the last three (3) fiscal years, there were no disagreements with the
independent accountants relating to accounting principles or practices, financial
statements disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.

PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

9 - Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer

(a)

Directors, Including Independent Directors and Executive Officers

There are nine (9) members of the Board, two (2) of whom are independent directors.
The term of office of each member is one (1) year and the members are elected at the
Annual Stockholders® Meeting, to hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting
and until their respective successors have been elected and qualified. A director who is
elected to fill any vacancy holds office for the unexpired portion of the term of his
predecessor. The current members of the Board of Directors are the following:

Board of Directors

(i) Chow Yew Yuen, 61, Singaporean, was elected Chairman of the Company in
June 2014. He is currently the Chief Executive Director of Keppel Offshore &
Marine (Keppel O&M), Ltd. He also serves on Board of Keppel O&M and holds
directorships on the Board of several Keppel subsidiaries including Keppel
FELS, Keppel Shipyard, Keppel O&M Technology Centre, Keppel Infrastructure
Holdings and Keppel Energy. He is also the Chairman of Keppel Singmarine,
Keppel AmFels, Keppel O&M USA and Keppel! FELS Brazil. Mr. Chow has a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering with First Class Honours
from the University of Newcastle-upon-Tyne. He has attended the Harvard
Business School’s Advance Management Program. He is the Vice President of

1



(if)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Association of Singapore Marine Industries, a Council Member of Singapore
Accreditation Council and a member of The American Bureau of Shipping
{(ABS), ABS Southeast Asia Regional Committee, ABS Offshore Technical
Committee and DNV GL South East Asia & Pacific Committee. Mr. Chow has
been with Keppel companies for more than 31 years and first joined Keppel
FELS in 1981 as Project Engineer.

Stefan Tong Wai Mun, 43, Malaysian, was elected as President and regular
Director in June 2007. He has been a regular Director of Keppel Philippine
Properties, Inc. since June 2007 and was elected as regular Director of Keppel
Philippines Marine, Inc. in February 2010 and Executive Vice-President in June
2011. He is also a regular Director of various Keppel companies in the
Philippines. Mr. Tong graduated from University of Western Australia with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Finance (Honors). He is a Chartered
Accountant and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.
He has 19 years of experience in banking, finance and real estate,

Celso P. Vivas, 69, Filipino, has been an Independent Director since June 2005
and is currently the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Vivas is a Certified Public Accountant. He is a member of Marubeni
Foundation’s Board of Trustees and Canadian Chamber of Commerce’s Board of
Governors. He is an Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. and Independent Director and member of the
Audit Committee of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. He was Risk Consulting
Partner and Assurance Business Advisory Partner of SGV & Company until his
retirement in 2001. Mr. Vivas obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration (Cum Laude) from the University of the East. He also obtained a
Master’s Degree in Business Management from the Asian Institute of
Management (SGV & Co. Scholar). He is also a graduate of Company Directors’
Course from Australian Institute of Company Directors (ICD Scholar). Mr.
Vivas has 49 years of experience in audit, finance, enterprise risk management
and corporate governance.

Noel M. Mirasol, 78, Filipino, was elected Independent Director of the Company
in June 2003 and currently a member of its Audit Committee. He currently serves
as Special Consultant to the CEO of International Container Terminal Services,
Inc. He is also a regular Director and President of ICTSI Georgia Corporation-
Cayman Islands. He is also a regular Director of ICTSI Warehousing, Inc.,
Container Terminal Systems Solutions, Inc. - Mauritius, and Guam-International
Container Terminal, Inc., and of other international container terminals both here
and abroad. Mr. Mirasol graduated from the De La Salle College, Manila with a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Mechanical Engineering. He also obtained
Masters of Science Degree in Management from Rennselaer Polytechnic
Institute, Troy, New York and a PhD in Operations Research from Case Institute
of Technology, Cleveland, Ohio. Mr. Mirasol has 49 years of experience in
finance in various industries.

Enrico L. Cordoba, 43, Filipino, was elected as regular Director of the Company
in June 2015 and currently a member of its Audit Committee. He is a holder of a
Master’s degree in Business Administration at Ateneo Graduate School of
Business and Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics Major in Actuarial
Science at University of Santo Tomas. He has also earned the professional
designations of Fellow of the Financial Services Institute, Fellow of the Life
Management Institute, Associate in Annuity Products and Administration,
Associate in Customer Service and Associate in Reinsurance Administration
from the Life Office Management Association, as well as the designation of
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(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Associate in Research and Planning from the Insurance Institute of America.
Currently, he is the Vice President for Corporate Planning of The Insular Life
Assurance Co., Ltd. He is a regular director of the Insular Life Management and
Development Corp., Insular Life Foundation and PPI Prime Venture, Inc. He is
also a Professional Lecturer for Management Science at De La Salle University
Graduate School of Business. He has more than 20 years of experience in his
area of expertise.

Benjamin P. Mata, 85, Filipino, was first elected regular Director of the
Company in 1975 on its incorporation, resigned in 1991and was subsequently re-
elected as regular Director again in 2003. Admiral Mata has been serving as
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Marine Inquiry, Philippine Coast Guard and
Chief of Marine Environment Protection Group of the Philippine Coast Guard
Auxiliary since 2004. Admiral Mata also serves as Chairman of B. P. Mata, Inc.,
Goodsoil Marine Realty Inc. and Goodwealth Realty Development Corp. He
graduated from the Philippine Merchant Marine Academy with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Marine Transportation and taken up Shipbuilding Management
Course at the Yokohama Shipbuilding Cooperation Center, Japan. As a licensed
Master Mariner, Admiral Mata has more than 48 years of experience in the
maritime industry and has sat in various committees relating to maritime issues.

Toh Ko Lin*, 63, Singaporean, was a regular Director and President of the
Company from 2002 to 2007. He was also President of Keppel Philippines
Marine, Inc. from 2001 until 2011. In October 2012, he was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and President of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. He
holds chairmanship in Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. and also regular directorship
in various affiliated companies in the Keppel Group. He is currently the
Executive Director of Keppel Singmarine Pte. Ltd. in Singapore. Mr. Toh
graduated from the University of Newcastle-upon-Tyne in UK with a Bachelor of
Science (Honors) degree in Naval Architecture. He also obtained a degree of
Master of Business Administration from the University of Western Ontario,

Canada. His work experience includes 39 years in the marine industry.
*Deceased as of 12 February 2016

Ma. Melva E. Valdez, 56, Filipino, holder of degrees of Bachelor of Arts in
Political Science and Bachelor of Laws from the University of the Philippines,
has been the Corporate Secretary of the Company since 1998 and a regular
Director since 2001. She is a name Partner of the law firm of Bello Valdez
Caluya and Fernandez Law Offices. She is also currently the Corporate Secretary
of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation (both
listed companies) and Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. She is likewise the
Corporate Secretary of Asian Institute of Management and Keppel Subic
Shipyard, Inc., and various Keppel companies in the Philippines and a regular
Director of Leighton Contractors (Phils.) Inc. Atty. Valdez has more than 30
years of working experience in her field of profession as a lawyer,

Felicidad V. Razon, 55, Filipino, was elected as a regular Director of the
Company last May 2014. She joined the Company as Finance Manager in May
2008 and was elected as Treasurer in June 2008 and was appointed as Vice
President/Treasurer and Compliance Officer in November 2013, She is also a
regular Director of Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc. and Goodwealth Realty
Development Corp., Treasurer of Kepwealth Property Philippines, Inc., President
of Keppel Center Condominium Inc. and Finance Manager of KPH related
companies. She graduated from Polytechnic University of the Philippines with
Bachelor of Science Degree in Commerce major in Accountancy and a Certified
Public Accountant.
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Executive Officers
(1) Stefan Tong Wai Mun , President — (See foregoing Director’s Profile)
(ii) Ma. Melva E. Valdez, Corporate Secretary — (See foregoing Director’s Profile)

(iiiy  Felicidad V. Razon, Vice President/Treasurer/Compliance Officer — (See
foregoing Director’s Profile)

(iv)  Lory Anne P. Manuel-McMullin, 46, Filipino, has been the Asst. Corporate
Secretary of the Company since 1998. She is also the Asst. Corporate Secretary
of Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc., Kepwealth Property Phils., Inc., Phil. Nagano
Seiko, Inc., Cavite Nagano Seiko, Inc., South Sea Nagano Dev. Inc., Karumona
Nagano Seiko, Inc., Mitsuba Philippines Technical Center Corp., Sunnelit
Philippines Corp., Logwin Air + Ocean Phils., Inc., Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc.,
Goodwealth Realty Dev. Corp., Goodwealth Ventures, Inc., KPSI Property, Inc.,
Keppel Batangas Shipyard, Inc., Consort Capital, Inc., Kepwealth, Inc. and
Kepventure, Inc. She is also a Director and Corporate Secretary/Treasurer of
Cominix (Philippines), Inc.; Director/Corporate Secretary of Mektec
(Philippines) Corp., Tokai Precision Philippines, Inc. and A + O Distribution
Corp.; Director of Yosemite Holdings, Inc., Cushman Wakefield Philippines, Inc.
and Shopee Philippines, Inc.; Corporate Secretary of Nachi Pilipinas Industries,
Inc., Technol Eight Philippines Corp., CMC Communications (Philippines), Inc.,
Sumi Philippines Wiring Systems Corp. and Saint-Gobain Philippines Co. Ltd.,
Inc.; and Resident Agent of Mektec Corp. (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Entel HK Ltd.
and Roquette Singapore Pte. Ltd. Atty. McMullin is 2 Junior Partner of JGLaw
Offices. She graduated from the University of Santo Tomas with Bachelor’s
degrees in Communication Arts and Laws.

(b) Significant Employees

(c)

There are no employees other than the officers mentioned in the preceding subsection
who are expected to make a significant contribution to the business.

Family Relationship

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or
affinity among directors, officers, and persons nominated or chosen by the company to
become directors, officers, any security holder of certain record, beneficial owner or
management.

(d) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, none of the directors and officers
was involved in any bankruptcy proceedings during the last five (5) years. Neither have
they been convicted by final judgment in any criminal proceedings, or been subjected to
any order, judgment or decree of any court of jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of
business, securities, commodities or banking activities, nor found in an action by any
court or administrative bodies to have violated a securities and commodities law or
regulation.
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10 - Executive Compensation

As the Company is an investment holding company, it has only two (2) executive officers,
namely the President and Vice President - Treasurer,

The total aggregate compensation (inclusive of perquisites and other personal benefits) of the
senior officers of the Company during the last two (2) fiscal years and the projected aggregate
compensation to be paid for the current fiscal year are as follows:

. Other Annual
Description Year Salary Bonus Compensation
2016 1 p4700,000 | None None
A te for All Officers Estimate
serega 2015 | P4,530,000 | None None
2014 24,565,000 None None
29] 6 85,190,000 None None
Aggregate for All Officers | Estimate
& Directors as a Group 2015 B5,020,000 None None
2014 £5,053,000 None None

Under the Company’s By-Laws, directors shall receive such compensation for their services
from time to time as maybe fixed by the stockholders. There are no warrants or options held by
the Company’s officers and directors. The Company does not have any other arrangements
pursuant to which any director is compensated directly or indirectly for any service provided as
a director. There are also no special employment contracts with executive officers of the
Company. The Company has no existing options, warrants or rights to purchase any securities.

11- Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

Sccurity Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of December 31, 2015, the Company knows of no one who beneficially owns in excess of
5% of the Company's common stock except as set forth in the table below:

Title of | Name, Address of Record/ Name ofBene.ﬁclalo " . No. of Shares |Percent
. Owner & Relationship! Citizenship
Class Beneficial Owner . Held of Class
with Record Owner
Common |Kepwealth, Inc. ! None Filipino |‘A’: 25,091,784 | 44.407
Unit 3B, Country Space 1 Bldg. ‘B 1,715,749
Sen. GilJ. Puyat Ave.,
Makati City 26,807,533
Common |Keppel Corporation Ltd.? None Singaporean 27.985
1 Harbour Front Ave., #18-01 ‘o,
Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore B 16,894,082
098632
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Common

PCD Nominee Corp.’ Filipino [|*A’: 11,013,145
37/F Enterprise Bldg., Filipino |‘B’: 2,053,869
\dyala Avenue, Makati City Foreign |‘B’: 604.916
13,671,930
s  HSBC Securities The Insular Life

Services * \Assurance Co. Lid, ‘A 6,408,422

(uitimate beneficial

owner)

Kepwealth, Inc. is majority-owned by Kepventure, Inc. The Chairman, or in his absence, the President of
Kepwealth, Inc. is duly authorized as proxy to vote in the shares of Kepwealth, Ine. in the Company.

Keppel Corporation Ltd, (KCL) is listed in the Singapore Stock Exchange. The Chairman of the Board or in his
absence, the President or in his absence the Chairman of the meeting shall have the right to vote or direct
voting or disposition of the shareholdings of KCL in the Company.

PCD Nominee Corp. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Philippine Central Depository, fnc. (PCD). It is the
registered owner of the shares in the books of the Company s transfer agents in the Philippines. The beneficial
owners of such shares are PCD'’s participants. PCD holds the shares on their (beneficial owner behalf or on
behaif of their (PCD) clients. PCD is a private company organized by the major institutions actively participating
in the Philippine capital markets to implement an automated book-entry system of handling securities transactions
in the Philippines.

HSBC Securities Services is the beneficial owner of 6,408,422 shares or 10.616% of the total owtstanding capital
stock, HSBC Securities Services is a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the Republic of the
Philippines as a Securities Broker. The Insular Life Assurance Co. Ltd, (Insular Life), a non-stock corporation
incorporalted in the Philippines, is the ultimate beneficial owner of 6,408,422 shares.

Security Ownership of Management as of December 31, 2015

22.648

10.616

Amount and
Tg::szf Name of Beneficial Owner g:;:;ec:; Citizenship Pe:;izz of

Ownership

Chow Yew Yuen / Chairman / Director ‘B’ 1(r) |Singaporean -

Stefan Tong Wai Mun / President / Director ‘B’ 1(r)] Malaysian -

Celso P. Vivas / Independent Director ‘AT 1(r}{ Filipino -

Noel M. Mirasol / Independent Director ‘B”: I(r}] Filipino -

Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco / Director AT 1{r)] Filipino -

Common A 89701 Filipino .

Benjamin P. Mata / Director ‘B’ 1{r)

Toh Ko Lin/ Director ‘B : 1(r}] Singaporean -

Ma. Melva E. Valdez / Director / Corp. Sec. ‘B’ I(r}| Filipino -

Felicidad V. Razon / Vice President -Treasurer ‘A 1(r){ Filipino -

Lory Anne P. Manuel-McMullin / Asst. Corp. Sec, - Filipino -

Free float level

The Company has 17% or 10,256,476 shares owned by the public out of the 60,367,419 total
outstanding shares as of December 31, 2015.




12 -

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has transactions with its affiliates. The
significant transactions with affiliates are as follows:

(a)

Since 1993, GMRI has lease agreement with Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. (KPMI) for a
period of 50 years, covering the property which is the site of KPMI’s shipyard. The annual
lease rate amounted to £10.4 million and is subject to escalation clause of 2% after every
five (5) years. Rent income based on straight-line method amounted to £9.6 million in
2015, 2014, and 2013. Total outstanding balance of lease receivables amounted to B34.6
million and £35.4 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

GMRI also leases a parcel of land for one year from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015.
The lease contract was renewed for another year effective January 1, 2016. Rental income
derived from these transactions amounted to 0.4 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013.

(b} GRDC leased its properties to KPMI for one year and renewable annually. Rental income

(c)

(d)

(e)

&)

()

derived from this transaction amounted to B0.2 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013. The
outstanding balance of lease receivable amounted to R0.02 million and nil as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

KPSI leases certain properties to KPMI, Keppel IVI Investments, Inc., Kepwealth Property
Phils, Inc. and Keppel Energy Consultancy, Inc., its affiliates, for a period of one year,
renewable annually. Rental income derived from the lease amounted to 1.2 million in
2015,2014 and 2013.

The Parent Company and KPMI has an existing land lease agreement on a piece of land
which is the subject of complaint against the Philippine National Qil Company (PNOC).
The monthly rent for the said piece of land is £0.2 million for a period of one year, subject
to yearly renewal. In July 2015, the lease agreement was renewed for another year with 5%
increase. Rental income derived from the land amounted to £2.1 million in 2015, B2.0
million in 2014 and 2013. Outstanding balance of lease receivables amounted to R0.2
million and nil as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In September 2014, GMRI granted a long-term interest bearing loan to KPMI amounting to
£200.0 million. The loan has five-year term, 15 months grace period on principal payment
and payable in equal quarterly installment. The loan is subject to interest repricing on semi-
annual basis. The loan has an option for prepayment. The interest rate applied in 2014
ranges from 3.4% to 3.5% and from 3.5% to 4.0% in 2015. Outstanding long-term loan
amounted to £187.5 million and £200.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. In December 2015, KPMI obtained another loan from GMRI amounting to
£15.0 million with term of 45 days and interest rate of 2.9%. Interest income earned by
GMRI from these loans amounted to B7.5 million and £2.0 million as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

In June 2015, the Parent Company granted short-term loan to KPMI amounting to £31.0
million with term of 18 days which was collected the following month. In September 2015,
KPMI obtained short-term loan amounting to £50.0 million due after 45 days which was
extended for additional 90 days starting November 2015. KPMI obtained another loan
amounting to B35.0 million in December 2015 with term of 90 days. Interest applied
ranges from 2.85% to 3.4% in2015. Interest income recognized by the Parent Company
from these loans amounted to £0.5 million in 2015.

Compensation of the key management personne!l of the Company pertains to salaries and
other short-term employee benefits amounting to £4.8 million in 2015, 4.5 million in 2014
and 4.3 million in 2013,
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(h) In 2014, the Parent Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with
KPMI to assist the latter in providing the relevant documents required to qualify to bid for

projects for a 1% share in revenue. The Parent Company received 20.3 million in July
2015.

(i) Other transactions with related parties consist of reimbursements or sharing of common
expenses such as legal, communication and business development expenses.

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

13 — Corporate Governance

Please refer to the attached Y2015 Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR)
as Annex A.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

14 - Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-A

(a) Exhibits — See accompanying Index to Exhibits

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C — The Company has filed all reports on Form 17-C (Current
Report) on matters needed in compliance with the SEC’s SRC during the fiscal year 2015
as follows:

February 3, 2015 | Setting of date of the Annual Stockholders Meeting on June 19, 2015 and
the record date for stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at said
meeting on May 19, 2015

Board of Directors’ approval of KPH’s 2014 SEC From 17-A (Annual
Report and Audited Financial Statements (AFS) for the year ended 31
December 2014 and release of said AFS

March 27, 2015 | Resignation of a Director, Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco

May 35, 2015 Notice of Agenda/Details for Annual Stockholders Meeting on June 19,
2015
May 14, 2015 Acceptance of Resignation of a Director and replacement to be announced

in the forthcoming stockholders meeting

Board approval on the reappointment of SGV & Co. as KPH’s external
auditor for the year 20135

June 19, 2015 Result of Board of Directors Meeting June 19, 2015

- Approval of Directors’ Remuneration for 2014

- Declaration of Cash Dividend - declaration of 10% or P0.10 per share
cash dividend to all stockholders of record of the Company as of July 6,
2015 to be paid on or before July 30, 2015

Results of the Annual Stockholders Meeting Held June 19, 2015

- Appointment of External Auditor, SGV & Co. for the financial year 2015

- Election of Directors for year 2015-2016

- Approval of the Corporation’s Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

- Approval of Directors’ Annual Remuneration of P60,000 for 2014

Results of Organizational Meeting — June 19, 2015
Election of officers for the ensuing year 2015-2016, appointment of
chairman, members of the various committees and compliance
officer/corporate information officer
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Upon the written request of the stockholder, the Company undertakes to furnish said stockholder
a copy of SEC Form 17-A free of charge, except for exhibits attached thereto which shall be
charged at cost. Any written request for a copy of SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed as follows:

Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.
Unit 3B Country Space 1 Building

133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo Village

Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City 1200

Attn: The Corporate Secretary

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code,
the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized, in the City of Makati on ,2016.

KEPPEL PHILIPPINES HOLDINGS, INC.

By:

Issuer

FelicMzun

Vice President /Treasurer

i

Ma. Melva. E. Valdez Lgry Apne P. Manuel-McMullin

Corporate Secretary
feurrently out of the country)

tant Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me iR L 2 2%1@ of April 2016; affiants
exhibiting to me their Passport or Social Security System (SS8) IDs, as follows:

Names

Stefan Tong Wai Mun

Felicidad V. Razon

Ma. Melva E. Valdez

Lory Anne P. Manuel-McMuliin

Doc No. ?
Page No.

Book No
Series of 20

Passport /SSS Nos. Expiry
Passport No. A22011774 Jupe 17, 2015, Malaysia

888 No. 03-5429848-7
SS88 No. 03-8437676-4
SSS No. 03-9635662-0

ATTY. ACHAD B. ORTIZ Jid.
Notary Publid Tity of Makali
uUntit Decembar 31, 2016
IBP No, 856155-Lifetime Member
MCLE Compiiance No. V-0006824
Appointment Ho. 14-38-{2015-2016)
PTR Mo. 5323504 Jan. 4, 2018
Makati City Roli No. 40091
101 Urban Ave. Campos Rueda Bidg.
Brgy. Pio Dol Plar, Makatl City
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Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. ~ Tel..  (632) 892 1816

Head Office Tel. (632) 892 1820 to 24
3B Country Space 1 Bldg. Fax:  (632) 8152581, 8926510

Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue
Makati, Philippines

08 January 2016

Atty. Justina F. Callangan

Director

Corporate Governance and Finance Department
Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC)

SEC Building

Mandaluyong City

Dear Director Callangan:

Re: Summary of Changes in the Y2015
Annual Corporate Governance Report
of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc.

In compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular nos.
1, 5 and 12, series of 2014, please see attached
notarized Secretary’s Certificate which reflects the
summary of changes in the Y2015 ACGR of Keppel
Philippines Holdings, Inc. with relevant excerpts of
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors
and Stockholders.

We hope that said Secretary’s Certificate meets
substantially your formal requirements /standards.

Very truly yours,

Ma,/MELvA E) VALDEZ
Corporate Secretary

A member of the Keppel Group, Singapore



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATI CITY )S.5.

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I, MA. MELVA E. VALDEZ, of legal age, Filipino with postal address at 6t Floor,
SOL Building, 112 Amorsolo Street, Legaspi Village, Makati City, after being duly
sworn, hereby depose and state that:

1. 1 am the Corporate Secretary of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. (the
“Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under and by
virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philippines with principal office at
Unit 3-B, Country Space 1 Building, #133 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Salcedo
Village, Brgy. Bel-Air, Makati City;

2. In connection with SEC Memorandum Circular nos. 1, 5 and 12, series of 2014,
the following are the excerpts of Board of Directors and Stockholders’” Minutes
of Meetings reflecting the Consolidated Changes in KPHI's Annual Corporate
Governance Report for year 2015 and other details relevant thereto:

s Item A(1}(a) Board Matters --Composition of the Board

Chow Yew Yuen NED N/A - Keppel Corp. Ltd. 7 7 June 2014 2015 ASM 1
mﬁ’" Tong Wai ED N/A Kepwealth, Inc. June 2007 2015 ASM 8
Celso P. Vivas 1D N/A Sﬁ;"h::rr:g June 2005 2015 {4) ASM 10
Noel M. Mirasol 1D N/A Ma. Melva E. Valdez June 2003 2015 (4) ASM 12
Enrico L. Cordoba NED N/A PLCD Nomineg June 2015 2015 ASM 0
Toh Ko Lin NED N/A Keppel Corp. Ltd. June 2002 2015 ASM 7
Benjamin P. Mata NED N/A Kepwealth, Inc. 1975 2015 ASM 40
;‘:'zizi:ad V- NED N/A Kepwealth, Inc. May 2014 2015 ASM 1
\':“:E;’:le"’a E. NED N/A Kepwealth, Inc. 2001 2015 ASM 14

**Cirst Elected in 2002 and served up to 2007, then re-elected in 2014,

In the Annual Stockholders’ meeting of KPHI, held on 19 June 2015,
“the Chairman inquired from the Corporate Secretary if there had been any
nominations submitted in accordance with the Corporation’s By-laws and
Manual on Corporate Governance. The Secretary answered in the affirmative
and read the names of the seven {7} nominees for election as regular
members of the Board of Directors and two {2} nominees for independent
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directors for the year 2015-2016. She added that there were no other
nominations filed in accordance with the By-laws and Manual on Corporate
Governance other than the names she had mentioned.

Considering that there were nine {3} nominees to fill in nine {9) seats in the
Board, the Chairman directed the Corporate Secretary to cast the votes
equally in favor of the 9 nominees. The following were elected as directors of
the Corporation for the year 2015-2016 and shall serve as such until their
successors are elected and shall have qualified:

Chow Yew Yuen

Stefan Tong Wai Mun

Celso P. Vivas — Independent Director
Noel M. Mirasol — Independent Director
Enrico L. Cordoba

Toh Ko Lin

Benjamin P, Mata

Ma. Melva E. Valdez

Felicidad V. Razon

L oML R WM

After having been elected in the just concluded stockholders’ meeting, the
members of the Board of Directors proceeded to organize the Corporation by
electing its officers.

On even date, an organizational meeting was also held, “whereupon,
after proper nomination and on mation duly seconded, the following officers
were elected to the position(s) indicated opposite their respective names for
the year 2015-2016 and shall serve as such until their successors are elected
and shall have qualified:

Chow Yew Yuen -Chairman

Stefan Tong Wai Mun -President

Felicidad V. Razon -Vice Prasident/Treasurer
Ma. Melva E. Valdez -Corporate Secretary

Lory Anne P. Manuel-McMullin -Assistant Corporate Secretary

In said organizational meeting, the following were appointed as
chairmen, members of various committees and compliance
officer/corporate information officer:

a. Executive Committee
Chairman: Stefan Tong Wai Mun
Members: Toh Ko Lin
Ma. Melva E. Valdez

b. Nominations Committee
Chairman: Toh Ko Lin
Members: Celso P. Vivas — Independent Director
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Noel M. Mirasol - Independent Director
Stefan Tong Wat Mun

¢. Compensation Committee
Chairman: Toh Ko Lin
Members: Celso P. Vivas — Independent Director
Enrico L. Cordoba
Stefan Tong Wai Mun

d. Audit Committee
Chairman: Celso P. Vivas - Independent Director
Members: Noel M. Mirasol - Independent Director
Enrico L. Cordoba
Toh Ko Lin
Stefan Tong Wai Mun

e. Compliance Officer & Corporate Information Officer
Felicidad V. Razon”

« ITtem A(T) (d)d) Directorship in the Company’s Grou

Following the resignation of Mr. Teo Soon Hoe from KPHI, his name
was excluded or deleted on the above captioned item.

* Item A(1) (e} Shareholdings in the Company

A bt} SO LG

Enrico L. Cordoba Class ‘A" : 1 - 0.00%

e A(B)a) Changes in___the Board of Directors--
Resignation/Death/Removal

Mavyo Jose B.

. Director 14 May 2015 Resignation
Ongsingco

On 14 May 2015, the Board of Directors accepted the resignation of Mr.
Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco.

“Mr. Toh, as Chairman of the Nomination Committee,
reported to the Board that a resignation letter dated 27
iMarch 2015 was previously received from Mr. Mayo Jose B.
Ongsinco, informing the Company of his resignation as
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Director of Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. x x x.
Furthermore, a copy of said resignation letter was also given
to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
had convened earlier today to discuss the matter and
proceeded on the business of selecting a replacement for Mr.
Ongsingco.

Anent thereto, he presented the signed resignation letter of
Mr. Ongsingco; said resignation to take effect upon
submission by the Nomination Committee of the Final List of
Candidates which contained one qualified candidate, Mr.
Enrico L. Cordoba, and acceptance thereof by the Board there
being no other nomination received by the Committee.

The Board likewise noted that Mr. Ongsingco was also a
member of the Audit and Compensation Committee and, as a
result of said resignation from the Board, is likewise
effectively resigned as a member of said Committees.

After several discussions and on motion duly made and
seconded, the Board resolved as follows:

“RESOLVED, That the Board of Directors hereby accepts with
regrets the resignation of Mr. Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco as a
member of the Board of Directors as well as the Audit and
Compensation Committee effective immediately and hereby
expresses its appreciation for his invaluable
services/contribution to the Company;

“RESOLVED FURTHER, That in light of the vacancy created by
such resignation, the stockholders will elect his replacement
at the forth coming annual stockholders’ meeting;

“RESOLVED FURTHERMORE, That by reason of Mr.
Ongsingeo’s resignation as Director, his appointment as
member of the Audit and Compensation Committee is
likewise deemed vacated. Mr. Ongsingco’s replacement in the
said committees will be appointed during the Board's
organizational meeting on 19 June 2015, to be held shortly
after the annual stockholders’ meeting,”

s Item A(5)(b) Voting Result of 19 June 2015 Annual General

S xS
of shares present and voting

Chow Yew Yuen 100%

Stefan Tong WaiMun 100% of shares present and voting
Celso P. Vivas 100% of shares present and voting
Noel M. Mirasol 100% of shares present and voting

Enrico L. Cordoba 100% of shares present and voting
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TohKo Lin

100% of shares present and voting

Benjamin P. Mata

100% of shares present and voting

Ma. Melva E, Valdez

100% of shares present and voting

Felicidad V. Razon

100% of shares present and voting

¢ Item A(6){(¢c) Continuing Education Programs for Directors

e fiice

Chow Yew Yuen
(Chairman/Director)

15 October 2015

SEC-PSE Corporate
Governance Forum

5 ar

Securities and
Exchange Commission

Stefan Tong Wai Mun
{President/Director)

15 QOctober 2015

SEC-PSE Corporate
Governance Forum

Securities and
Exchange Commission

Celso P. Vivas
{Independent Director)

15 October 2015

SEC-PSE Corporate
Governance Forum

Securities and
Exchange Commission

Noel M. Mirasol
{independent Director)

15 October 2015

SEC-PSE Corporate
Governance Forum

Securities and
Exchange Commission

Enrico L. Cordoba 30 October 2015 | Corporate Risk, Opportunities,

(Director} Governance Assessment &
Management (ROAM),
Inc.

TohKo Lin 15 October 2015 | SEC-PSE Corporate Securities and

{Director] Governance Forum Exchange Commission

Ma. Melva E. Valdez 15 October 2015 | SEC-PSE Corporate Securities and

{Director/Corporate Governance Forum Exchange Commission

Secretary)

Felicidad V. Razon 15 Qctober 2015 | SEC-PSE Corporate Securities and

{Director/Treasurer/ Governance Forum Exchange Commission

Compliance Officer/
Corporate Information
Officer}

o Item C(2) Board Meetings and Attendance--Details of the

Attendance of Directors (Y2015)

Chairman Chow Yew Yuen 18 June 2015 6 6 100%*
Member Stefan Tong Wai Mun 19 june 2015 6 6 100%
Independent | Celso P. Vivas 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Independent Noel M, Mirasol 19 lune 2015 6 6 100%
Member Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco* 19 June 2015 6 1 100%
Member Enrico L, Cordoba** 19 June 2015 6 3 100%**
Member Toh Ko Lin 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Member Benjamin P. Mata 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Member Ma. Melva E. Valdez 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Member Felicidad V. Razon 19 June 2015 6 6 100%

*resigned as Director of KPHI on 14 May 2015
**elected as director only on 19 June 2015
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¢ Item D(2) Remuneration Matters-- Total Remuneration Details

for the last 3 years and Item D(3) Aggregate Remuneration

Total remuneration details for the last 3 years

“Stockholderst App
Fixed amount (Php60,000.00) 19 lune 2015
Fixed amount (Php60,000.00) 28 May 2014
Fixed amount (Php60,000.00) 06 June 2013

Aggregate Remuneration

{a) Fixed Remuneration

{b} Variable Remuneration

{c} Perdiem Allowance

(d) Bonuses Php4,565,000 as Php152,000 as
stated in the 17A Php336,000 as stated

{e) Stock Options and/or . in the 17A and 1S Statei:;tge 17A
other financial
instruments

{f) Others (Specify)

On 19 June 2015, the following resolution was approved and adopted
by the Stockholders:

“RESOLVED, That the amount of SIXTY THOUSAND PESOS
(R60,000.00) per director be as it is hereby appropriated as
and by way of directors’ remuneration for the last fiscal
year.”

¢ liem E(1) Number of Members, Functions, and Responsibilites

Under Section K, Articte N1, KPHE Manual on Corporale
Governance, the Nomination Committee shall:

Nomination 1 1 2 N/A
a} Pre-screen and shortlist all candidates to the Board and
other appointments that require Board approval, in
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accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications
enumerated provided under this Manual, the Corporation
Code, Securities 8 Regulations Code, and other pertinent
rules and regulations.

b) Assess the effectiveness of the Board's processes and
procedures in the election or replacement of directors.

c} In consultation with the Executive Committee, re-define
the role, duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive
Officer/President by integrating the dynamic requirements of
the business as a going concern and future expansionary
prospects within the realm of good corporate governance at
ali times.

Under Section 3, Articte IV of KPHI's By-Laws, the Namination
Committee “shall pre-screen and shorthist all candidates
nominated to become a member of the board of directors in
accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications
provided under the Code of Carparate Governance.

“The NMomination Committee shall, in consultation with the
Executive Committee, re-define the role, duties and
respensibilities of the Chief Executive Officer/President by
integrating the dynamic requirements of the business as a
going concern and future expansionary prospects within the
realm of good corporate governance for the Board.”

Under Section X, Article 1, KPHI Manual on Corporate
Governance, the Compensation and Remuneration
Committee shall:

a)Establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing a policy on executive remuneration and for fixing
the remuneration packages of corporate officers and
directors, and provide oversight over remuneration of senior
management and other key personnel, ensuring that
compensation is consistent with the Corporation’s culture,
strategy and control environmaent,

b)Designate amount of remuneration, which shall be in a
sufficient level to attract and retain directors and officers who
are needed to run the company successfully.

c}Develop a farm on Full Business Interest Disclosure as part
of the pre-employment requirements for all incoming
officers, which among others compel all officers to declare
under the penalty of perjury all their existing business
interests or shareholdings that may directly or indirectly
i 2 1 A L X . ,
Rermuneration 1 N/ conflict in their performance of duties once hired.

diDisallow any director to decide his or her own
remuneration.

e)Provide in the Corporation’s annual reports, information
and proxy statements a clear, concise and understandable
disclosure of compensation of its executive officers for the
previous fiscal year and the ensuing year.

flReview (if any) of the existing Human Resources
Development or Personnel Handbook, to strengthen
provisions on conflict of interest, salaries and benefits
policies, promotion and career advancement directives and
compliance of personnel concerned with all statutory
requirements that must be periodically met in their
respective posts.

gln the absence of such Personnmel Handbook, cause the
development of such, covering the same parameters of
governance stated above.”
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e Item E(2)(a) Board Committees--Executive Committee

19 june 2015

Member {NED) Ma. Melva E. Valdez 15 June 2015 0 9years
Member (NED) Toh Ko Lin 19 June 2015 0 3 years
* Jtem E(2)(b) Audit Committee

Chairman {ID} Celso P. Vivas 19 June 2015 4 4 100% 9 years
Member (ID) Noel M. Mirasol 19 June 2015 4 4 100% 9 years
Member (ED) Stefan Tong Wai Mun 19 June 2015 4 4 100% 8years
Member {NED) Toh Ko Lin 19 June 2015 4 4 100% lyear
Member {NED) Enrico L. Cordoba* 19 lune 2015 4 2 100% Oyear

*elected as Member of the Audit Committee on 19 June 2015.

Item E(2){c} Nomination Commitiee

Chairman Toh Ko Lin 19 June 2015 1 1 100%

Member (ED) Stefan Tong Wai Mun 19 June 2015 1 1 100% 8years
Member {ID} Noel M. Mirasol 19 June 2015 1 1 100% Syears
Member (ID) Celso Vivas 19 June 2015 1 1 100% 1 year

Item E{(2)(d) Remuneration Committee

Chairman Toh Ko Lin 19 June 2015 0 N/A N/A 1vyear
Member (ED} Stefan Tong Wai Mun 19 lune 2015 &) N/A N/A 8 years
Mernber {ID) Celso P, Vivas 19 fune 2015 0 N/A N/A 9 years
Member (NED) Enrico L. Cordoba 19 june 2015 0 N/A N/A 0 year
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e Item E(3) Changes in Committee Members

18] : : siiReason
Executive None /A
Audit Mavya Jase B. Ongsingco Resignation
Nomination None N/A
Remuneration Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco Resignation
Others [specify) N/A N/A

*Please see above excerpt of 19 June 2015 organizational minutes re appointment of Committee members,

¢ Jtem H(3)(c) Role of Stockholders—Training and Development
Programmes

{c) State the company'’s training and development programmes for its employees. Show
the data.

Addressing the Power Crisis: Assessment & Outlook by Center for Phil. Futuristic Studies
& Management, Inc. — May 2015; The Future of Bio Fuel Industry: Status, Policy and
Directions by Center for Phil. Futuristic Studies & Management, Inc. — July 2015; and
July2015; PSE-SEC Corporate Governance Seminar-October 2015.

o Item I{1}(a) Disclosure and Transparency —QOwnership Structure

(a) Holding 5% shareholding or more
Kepweaith, Inc. 26,807,533 44.40% N/A
Keppel Corporation Ltd. 16,894,082 27.999% N/A
PCD Nominee Corp. - o
Filipino s 13,067,679 21.64% N/A

***** The Insular Life and Assurance Co., Ltd has 6,408,422 shares or 10.616% - under PCD Mominee Corporation.
Filipino; Net of the share of The Insular Life and Assurance Co., Ltd., PCD Nominee-Filipino will have 10.945%

+ [tem I{3)External Audifor’'s Fee

G i

Php385,000.00 (includin
out-of-pocket expenses)

S\)Ciﬁ Gorres Velayo & Co.
(SGV)

o Item I(5) Disclosure and_ Transparency — Release of Audited
Financial Report

The 17A or Annual Report was submitted to Philippine Stock Exchange and was
posted on its website on April 13, 2015. It was also posted on KPHI website on April
28, 2015.
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o Item I{6) Company Wehsite

On 14 May 2014, KPHI submitted with the SEC an advisement letter and formally informed SEC of
its compliance with SEC Resolution no. 393, series of 2011. Further, in compliance with SEC
Memorandum Circular No.11, series of 2014, KPHI has reconstructed its wehsite in accordance with
SEC template. The website of KPH| may be visited at: http://www.keppelph.com.

Business operations Yes
Financial statements/reports (current and prior years) Yes
Materials provided in briefings to analysts and media Yes
Shareholding structure Yes
Group corporate structure Yes
Downloadable annual report Yes
Notice of AGM and/or EGM Yes
Company's constitution {company's by-laws, memorandum and Yes
articles of association)

» Item J{1)(c) Rights of Stockholders--Dividends

19 june 2015

06 July 2015 30 July 2015

On 19 June 2015 the Board of Directors, the following resolution was

approved:

“RESOLVED, That the Board of Directors of Keppel Philippines
Holdings, Inc. (the “Corporation”) hereby declares a cash
dividend of Php 0.10 (10%) per share, or equivalent Php 6.04
Million from the unrestricted retained earnings of the
Corporation as of 31 December 2014, to be distributed to all
stockholders record as of 06 July 2015;

RESOLVED FURTHER, That the payment date shall not he
later than 30 July 2015;

£

XXX
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o Item J(1){d)(5) Results of 19 June 2015 Annual Stockholders’

Meetin

Reading and Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Al — Nome
Stockholders’ meeting held on 08 May 2014
Presentation of the Annual Report and Approval of Al N o
the Audited Financial Statements of 2014 one one
Ratification of the Acts and Proceedings of the Al N N
Board of Directors, Officers and Management ene one
Election of Directors for year 2015-2016 All None None
Directors’ Remuneration of Php60,000 each for the

\ All None None
{ast fiscal year
Appointment of the External Auditor All None None
Announcement of Cash Dividend N/A N/A N/A

During the 2015 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, it was “indicated that
copies of the minutes of the last annual meeting held on 28 May 2014 were
made available to the stockholders before the start of the meeting. Thus, on
proper motion duly made and seconded, the reading of the aforesaid minutes
was dispensed with and the minutes of the 06 June 2013 Annual

Stockholder's Meeting was accordingly approved.”

PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL REPORT AND APPROVAL OF AUDITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“The Chairman stated that the Annual Report was not prepared for 2014 and
even prior to that to save on costs. However, he indicated that all relevant
information can be found under the Company’s Annual Report {SEC Form 17-
A) and/or Definitive Information Statement (SEC Form 20-1S}). Furthermore, a
copy of SEC Form 17-A is available at the PSE website or may be requested
from the Corporate Secretary. The SEC Form 20-IS which contained the
audited financial statements has been sent cut to the stockholders pricr to
the stockholders’ meeting and that copies thereof were made available at the
entrance of the venue for the meeting for those who have not received a

copy yet.

There being no questions and on motion duly made and seconded, the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 2014 was approved.”

RATIFICATION OF THE ACTS AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND MANAGEMENT DURING THE YEAR UNDER

REVIEW

“Whereupon, on motion duly made and seconded, the following resolution

was adopted:
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“RESOLVED, That all the official or corporate acts and
proceedings of the Board of Directors, Officers and
Management of the Corporation since the last annual
meeting of the stockholders up to the present are hereby
ratified.”

"

XXX

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman inquired from the Corporate Secretary if there had been any
nominations submitted in accordance with the Corporation’s By-laws and
Manual on Corporate Governance. The Secretary answered in the affirmative
and read the names of the seven (7) nominees for election as regular
members of the Board of Directors and two (2) nominees for independent
directors for the year 2015-2016. She added that there were no other
nominations filed in accordance with the By-laws and Manual on Corporate
Governance other than the names she had mentioned.

Considering that there were nine (9) nominees to fill in nine (9) seats in the
Board, the Chairman directed the Corporate Secretary to cast the votes
equally in favor of the 9 nominees. The following were elected as directors of
the Corporation for the year 2015-2016 and shall serve as such until their
successors are elected and shall have qualified:

Chow Yew Yuen

Stefan Tong Wai Mun

Celso P. Vivas — Independent Director
Noel M. Mirasol — Independent Director
Enrico L. Cordoba

Toh Ko Lin

8enjamin P. Mata

Ma. Melva E. Valdez

Felicidad V. Razon

LooNOUn R WNE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Whereupon, on motion duly made and seconded, the following resolution
was adopted:

“RESOLVED, That the amount of SIXTY THOUSAND
PESOS (P60,000.00) per director be as it is hereby
appropriated as and by way of directors
remuneration for the last fiscal year.”
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APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR
“Whereupon, on motion duly made and seconded, the following resolution
was adopted:

RESOLVED, That SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. be as it is hereby
reappointed as the external auditor of the Corporation for the
year 2014 at a fee to be fixed by Management.”

¢ Item J(1){(d)(6) Date of Publishing of the result of the votes
taken during the most recent AGM for all resolutions

The result of the votes taken during the most recent AGM for all
resolutions was submitted to SEC thru Form 17C on same day of AGM
on 19 June 2015. It was likewise submitted to PSE on even date at 5:00
in the afternoon.

. Item [(1){f)(i) Details of AGM Attendance

Chow Yew Yuen,
Stefan Tong Wai Mun,
Celso P. Vivas,

Noel M. Mirasol,
Annual Enrico L. Cordoba, 0.005% 86.523% 86.528%

19 June One share,

Toh Ko Lin 2015 one vote

Benjamin P. Mata,
Ma. Melva E. Valdez
Felicidad V. Razon

During the 2015 Annual Stockholders” Meeting, “the Corporate
Secretary advised the Chairman that x x x out of the total outstanding
shares, about 86.53% were present either in person or by proxy;
hence, there was a quorum.”

e Jtem J(1)(i) Definitive Information Statements and Management
Report

25 May 2015
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3. The foregoing information is in accordance with the records of the
Corporation in my custody as Corporate Secretary.

4. This certification is being issued in compliance with SEC Memorandum
Circulars no. 1, 5 and 12, series of 2014 and for whatever legal purposes it may
serve.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hercunto affixed my signature at Makati City,
on 8" day of January 2016.

Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 8" day of January 2016 in
Makati (ity; affiant MA. MELVA E. VALDEZ exhibited to me her Social Security
System (SSS) ID No. 03-8437676-4

Deoc. No. 4&9'
Page No. 9Z;
Book No. _,L
Series of 2016.

Appointment No ' ¢
Valid Pntit 31 December 2016
JGlaw, 6™ Floor, 501 Bldg., 112 Amorsalo St.,
Legaspi Village, Makati City
PTR No. 4750994 / 05 lanuary 2015 [ Makati City
18P No. 972155 / 06 Janvary 2015 [ Makati City
koll Mo, £2947
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A. BOARD MATTERS

1)

Board of Directors

(a) Composition of the Board

Complete the table with information on the Board of Directors as of 2012:

Keppel Corp. June
Chow Yew Y NED
ow Yew Yuen E N/A Ltd. 2014 2015 ASM 1
Stefan Tong Wai June
D .
Mun E N/A Kepwealth, inc 2007 2015 ASM 8
. Stefan Tong June
Iso P, Viva ] N
Cels ivas /A Wal Mun 2005 2015 (4) ASM 10
. Ma. Melva E. June
M. M |
Noe iraso iD N/A Valdez 2003 2015 {4) ASM 12
Enrico L. . June
Cordoba NED N/A PCD Nominee 2015 2015 ASM 0]
. Keppel Corp. June -
TohKo Lin NED N/A Ltd. 2002 2015 ASM 7
jamin P,
2:3?:“" NED N/A | kepwealth, Inc. | 1975 2015 ASM 40
Felicidad V. May
Razon NED N/A Kepwealth, Inc. 2014 2015 ASM 1
a. Mel .
Ma. Melva £ NED N/A | Kepwealth, inc. | 2001 2015 ASM 14
Valdez

**First Elected in 2002 and served up to 2007, then re-elected in 2014.

(b) Provide a brief summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted. Please

emphasize the policy/ies relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of minority
shareholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibilities.

The Company’s objective is to protect and enhance the interest of its stakeholders by committing itself to the
principles of risk management, fairness, accountability and transparency. Thus, it fully embraces and practices
sound corporate governance in order to instill trust and confidence to the organization. (Article |, Amended
Manual on Corporate Governance)

The Board should be transparent and fair in the conduct of the annual and special stockholders’ meetings of
the corporation. The stockholders should be encouraged to personally attend such meetings. If they cannot
attend, they should be apprised ahead of time of their right to appoint a proxy. Subject to the requirements
of the by-laws, the exercise of that right shall not be unduly restricted and any doubt about the validity of a
proxy should be resolved in the stockholder's favor. It is the duty of the Board to promote the rights of the
stockholders, remove impediments to the exercise of those rights and provide an adequate avenue for them
to seek timely redress for breach of their rights. {Article VI B, Amended Manual on Corporate Governance}

The Board should take the appropriate steps to remove excessive or unnecessary costs and other
administrative impediments to the stockholders' meaningful participation in meetings, whether in person or

'Reckoned from their election as of the annual stockholders’ meeting {ASM) held on 19 Jupe 2015



by proxy. Accurate and timely informatien should be made available to the stockholders to enable them to
make a sound judgment on all matters brought to their attention for consideration or approval. Although all
stockholders should be treated equally or without discrimination, the Board should give minority
stockholders the right to propose the holding of meetings and the items for discussion in the agenda that
relate directly to the business of the corporation. {Article VI B, Amended Manual on Corporate Governance)

The Board of Directors, Management, employees and shareholders believe that corporate governance is an
indispensable component towards achieving long-term success and profitability in the company.
Furthermore, sound strategic business management must be implemented and observed awhile creating fuil
awareness within the organization. (Article |, Amended Manual on Corporate Governance)

(c} How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission? None.

(d) Directorship in Other Companies

(i) Directorship in the Company’s Group®

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who hold the office of
director in other companies within its Group:

Chow Yew Yuen Keppel Singmarine Chairman
Keppel AMFELS Chairman
Keppel O&M USA Chairman
Keppel FELS Brasil Chairman
Keppel Offshore & Marine {Keppel O&M), Ltd. Executive
Keppel FELS Non-Executive
Keppel Shipyard Non-Executive
Keppel O&M Technology Centre Non-Executive
Keppel Infrastructure Holdings Non-Executive
Keppel Energy Non-Executive
Stefan Tong WaiMun Consort Land, Inc. Chairman
Consort Capital, inc Chairman
Keppel Fels Energy Manila, Inc. Chairman
Dyna-Mac Keppel Philippines, Inc. Executive
Keppel Energy Consuftancy, inc. Executive
Keppel Fels Energy , Inc. Executive
Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. Executive
Kepwealth Property Phils., Inc. Executive
Keppel VI Capital, Inc, Non-Executive
Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc, Non-Executive
Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. Non-Executive
Kepventure, Inc. Non-Executive
Kepwealth, Inc. Non-Executive
KPSl Property, Inc. Non-Executive
Celso P.Vivas Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. Independent
Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. Independent
Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. Independent
TohKo Lin Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. Chairman/Executive
Keppel Batangas Shipyard, Inc. Chairman

 The Group is composed of the parent, subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the company.



Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. Chairman
KPSI Property, Inc, Chairman
Kepwealth Property Phils Inc. Chairman
Goodwealth Ventures, Inc, Chairman
Goodstart Properties, Inc. Chairman
KS Ventures, Inc. Chairman
Keppel SingmarinePte. Ltd. {Singapore) Executive

Keppel Singmarine Philippines, Inc.

Non-Executive

Keppel Cebu Shipyard, inc.

Non-Executive

Benjamin P. Mata

Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc.

Chairman

Goodwealth Realty and Development Corp.

Chairman

Ma. Melva E. Valdez

Opon Realty & Development Corp

Chairman/Executive

Opon-Ke Properties, Inc.

Chairman/Executive

Buena Homes {Sandoval), Inc. Executive
Buena Homes, Inc. Executive
Residencia Grande, Inc. Executive

Consort Land, Inc.

Non-Executive

Goodscil Marine Realty, Inc.

Non-Executive

Goodwealth Realty and Development Corp.

Mon-Executive

Goodwealth Ventures, Inc.

Non-Executive

Keppel VI Capital, Inc.

Non-Executive

Kepventure, Inc.

Non-Executive

Kepwealth, Inc.

Non-Executive

Kepwealth Property Phils., inc.

Non-Executive

KP Capital, Inc.

Non-Executive

KPSt Property, Inc.

Non-Executive

Opon Ventures, Inc.

Non-Executive

Felicidad V. Razon

Goodsoil Marine Realty, Inc.

Non-Executive

Goodwealth Realty and Development Corp.

Non-Executive

Keppel Fels Energy Manila Inc.

Non-Executive

(i) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who are also directors of
publicly-listed companies outside of its Graup:

{iii} Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any relation among the members of the Board of Directors, which
links them to significant shareholders in the company and/or in its group:

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity among
the members of the Board of Directors which links them to significant shareholders in the company
and/or in its group.

{iv) Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats in other companies {publicly listed, ordinary
and companies with secondary license) that an individual director or CEO may hold simultaneously? in
particular, is the limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies imposed and observed? If yes,
briefly describe other guidelines:



Per Article IV{3) of KPHI's By-Laws and Article II{C}, Company Manual on Corporate Governance
{(Amended), “[t]he optimum number {of Board seats that an individual director may hold simultaneously)}
should take into consideration the capacity of a director to diligently and efficiently perform his duties
and responsibilities.” Further “[t]he Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and other executive directors may be
covered by a lower indicative limit for membership in other boards. A similar limit may apply to
independent or non-executive directors who, at the same time, serve as full-time executives in other
corporations. In any case, the capacity of the directors to diligently and efficiently perform their duties
and responsibilities to the boards they serve should not be compromised.”

{e}) Shareholding in the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the company's Board of Directors who directly and indirectly
own shares in the company as 0f2015:

Chow Yew Yuen Class ‘B': 1 - 0.00%
Stefan Tong WaiMun Class ‘B’ : 1 - 0.00%
Celso P. Vivas Class ‘A’ 1 1 - 0.00%
Noel M. Mirasol Class ‘B': 1 - 0.00%
Enrico L. Cordoba Class ‘A": 1 - 0.00%
TohKo Lin Class ‘B’ : 1 0.00%
Benjamin P, Mata Class ‘A’ : 897; ‘B’ : 1 - 0.00%
Ma. Melva E. Valdez Class ‘8’ : 1 - 0.00%
Felicidad V. Razon Class ‘A’ -1 0.00%
TOTAL 906**

2) Chairman and CEQ

(a} Do different persons assume the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO? If no, describe the
checks and balances laid down to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views.

Yes III No \:]

Identify the Chair and CEO:

Chow Yew Yuen
Stefan Tong WaiMun

{b} Roles, Accountabilities and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Chairman and CEOQ,

The Chairman, who shall be elected by the Board | The President, who shall be elected by the
from their own members, shall preside at all | Board of Directors from their own members,
meetings of the Board of Directors and | shall have the following powers and duties:

stockholders and shall perform such functions and | a)He shall preside at all meetings in the

Role exercise such duties as may be delegated to him by | absence of the Chairman;
the Board of Directors. (Section 2, Article V, KPH! | b)He shall sign all certificates of stock; and
By-Laws) c}He shall perform all such other duties as may

be delegated to him by the Board of Directors.
{Section 3, Article V, KPHI By-Laws}

The Chairman is subject 1o the following | The President, being a member of the Board of
permanent and temporary disqualifications | Directors, is also subject to the same
imposed upon all board members: permanent and temporary disqualifications
1. Permanent Disqualification imposed upon all board members to wit:

1. Permanent Disqualification

Accountabilities

The following shall be grounds for the permanent




disgualification of a director:

{i) Any person convicted by fina! judgment or order
by a competent judicial or administrative body of
any crime that:

{a) involves the purchase or sale of securities, as
defined under the Securities Regulation Code;

(b} arises out of the person's canduct as an
underwriter, broker, dealer, investment adviser,
principal, distributor, mutual fund dealer, futures
commission merchant, commodity trading advisor,
or floor broker; or

() arises out of his fiduciary relationship with a
bank, guasi-bank, trust company, investment
house or as an affiliated person of any of them.

{ii} Any person who, by reason of misconduct, after
hearing, is permanently enjoined by a final
judgment or order of the Commissign or any court
or administrative body of competent jurisdiction
from:

{a) acting as underwriter, broker, dealer
investment adviser, principal distributor, mutual
fund dealer, futures commission merchant,
commodity trading advisor, or floor broker;

b} acting as directar aor officer of a bank, quasi-
bank, trust company, investment house, or
investment company;

{c) engaging in or continuing any conduct or
practice in any of the capacities mentioned in sub-
paragraphs {a) and (b) above, or wilifully viclating
the laws that govern securities and banking
activities.

The disqualification shall also apply if such person
is currently the subject of an order of the Securities
& Exchange Commission (SEC or the “Commission™)
or any court or administrative body denying,
revoking or suspending any registration, license or
permit issued to him under the Corporation Code,
Securities Regulation Code or any other law
administered by the Commission or BangkoSentral
ng Pilipinas (BSP}, or under any rule or regulation
issued by the Commission or BSP, or has ctherwise
been restrained to engage in any activity involving
securities and banking; or such person is currently
the subject of an effective order of a self-
regulatory organization suspending or expelling
him from membership, participation or association
with a member or participant of the arganization;

(iii} Any person convicted by final judgment or
order by a court or competent administrative body
of an offense involving moral turpitude, fraud,
embezzlement, theft, estafa, counterfeiting,
misappropriation, forgery, bribery, false
affirmation, perjury or other fraudulent acts;

{ivl Any person who has been adjudged by final
judgment or Order of the Securities & Commission,
court, or other competent administrative body to
have witlfully violated, or willfully aided, abetted,
counseled, induced or procured the violation of
any provision of the Corporation Code, Securities
Regulation Code or any other law administered by
the Commission or BSP, or any of its rule,
regulation or order;

{v) Any person earlier elected as independent
director who becomes an officer, employee or

consultant of the same corporation;

{vi} Any person judicially declared as insolvent;

The following shall be grounds for the
permanent disqualification of a director:

{i) Any person convicted by final judgment or
order by a competent judicial or administrative
body of any crime that:

{a) involves the purchase or sale of securities,
as defined under the Securities Regulation
Code;

(b} arises out of the person's conduct as an
underwriter, broker, dealer, investment
adviser, principal, distributor, mutual fund
dealer, futures commission  merchant,
commodity trading advisor, or floor broker; or
{c)arises out of his fiduciary relationship with a
bank, guasi-bank, trust company, investment
house or as an affiliated person of any of them.

(i} Any person who, by reason of misconduct,
after hearing, is permanently enjoined by a
final judgment or order of the Commission or
any court or administrative body of competent
jurisdiction from:

(a)} acting as underwriter, broker, dealer
investment adviser, principal distributor,
mutual fund dealer, futures commission
merchant, commaodity trading advisor, or floor
broker;

(b) acting as director or officer of a bank, quasi-
bank, trust company, investment house, or
investment company;

(¢} engaging in or continuing any conduct or
practice in any of the capacities mentioned in
sub-paragraphs (a) and (b} above, or willfully
violating the laws that govern securities and
banking activities.

The disqualification shall also apply if such
person is currently the subject of an order of
the Securities & Exchange Commission {SEC or
the “Commission”) or any court or
administrative body denying, revoking or
suspending any registration, license or permit
issued to him under the Corporation Code,
Securities Regulation Code or any other law
administered by the Commission or
BangkoSentral ng Pilipinas [BSP), or under any
rule or regulation issued by the Commission or
BSP, or has otherwise been restrained to
engage in any activity involving securities and
banking; or such person is currently the subject
of an effective order of a self-regulatory
organization suspending or expelling him from
membership, participation or association with a
member or participant of the organization;

{iii) Any person convicted by final judgment or
order by a court or competent administrative
body of an offense involving moral turpitude,
fraud, embezzlement, theft, estafa,
counterfeiting,  misappropriation,  forgery,
bribery, false affirmation, perjury or other
fraudulent acts;

{iv} Any person who has been adjudged by final
judgment or Order of the Securities &
Commission, court, or other competent
administrative body to have willfully violated,
or willfully aided, abetted, counseled, induced
or procured the viclation of any provision of
the Corporation Code, Securities Regulation
Code or any other law administered by the
Commission or BSP, ar any of its rule,
regulation or order;




(vii) Any person found guilty by final judgment or
order of a foreign court or equivatent financial
regulatory authority of acts, violations or
misconduct similar to any of the acts, viclations or
misconduct enumerated in sub-paragraphs (i) to (v)
above;

(vili)) Conviction by final judgment of an offense
punishable by imprisonment for a period exceeding
six {6} years, or a violation of the Corporation Code
committed within five (5) years prior to the date of
his election or appointment; and

(ix} Such other grounds as the Committee may
reasonably provide as a disqualification.

2. Temporary Disqualificaticn

The following shall be grounds for the temporary
disqualification of a director:

(iy Refusal to comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Securities Regulation Code
and its implementing Rules and Regulations, The
disqualification shall be in effect as long as the
refusal persists.

{ii} Absence in meore than fifty (50) percent of all
regular and special meetings of the Board during
his incumbency, or any twelve {12) manth period
during the said incumbency, unless the absence is
due to illness, death in the immediate family or
serious accident. The disqualification shail apply for
purposes of the succeeding election.

{iii} Dismissal or termination for cause as director
of any corperation covered by this Manual. The
disqualification shall be in effect until he has
cleared himself from any involvement in the cause
that gave rise to his dismissal or termination.

{iv} If the beneficial equity ownership of an
independent director in the corporation or its
subsidiaries and affiliates exceeds two percent of
its subscribed capital stock. The disqualification
shall be lifted if the limit is later complied with.

{v) If any of the judgments or orders cited in the
grounds for permanent disqualification has not yet
becomae final.

{Section D, Article 1ll, XPHI Amended Manual on
Corporate Governance)

{v} Any person earlier elected as independent
director who becomes an officer, employee or
consultant of the same corparation;

{vi) Any person judicially declared as insolvent;

{vii} Any person found guilty by final judgment
or order of a foreign court or equivalent
financial regulatory authority of acts, violations
or misconduct similar to any of the acts,
violations or misconduct enumerated in sub-
paragraphs (i) to (v} above;

{viii) Conviction by final judgment of an offense
punishable by imprisonment for a period
exceeding six (6} years, or a violation of the
Corporation Code committed within five {5)
years prior to the date of his election or
appointment; and

{ix} Such other grounds as the Committee may
reasonably provide as a disqualification.

2. Temporary Disqualification

The following shall be grounds for the
temporary disgualification of a director:

{i) Refusal to comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Securities Regulation Code
and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.
The disqualification shall be in effect as long as
the refusal persists.

(it} Absence in more than fifty (50} percent of all
regular and special meetings of the Board
during his incumbency, or any twelve (12)
month period during the said incumbency,
unless the absence is due to illness, death in
the immediate family or serious accident. The
disqualification shall apply for purposes of the
succeeding election.

{iti) Dismissal or termination for cause as
director of any corporation covered by this
Manual. The disqualification shall be in effect
until he has cleared himself from any
involvement in the cause that gave rise to his
dismissal or termination.

{iv] If the beneficial equity ownership of an
independent director in the corporation or its
subsidiaries and affiliates exceeds two percent
of its subscribed capital stock. The
disqualification shall be lifted if the limit is {ater
complied with.

{v} If any of the judgments or orders cited in the
grounds for permanent disqualification has not
yet become final.

{Section D, Article i, KPHI Amended Manual on
Corporate Governance)

Deliverables

(i} Ensure that the meetings of the Board are held
in accardance with the by-laws or as the Chair may
deem necessary;

{ii) Supervise the preparation of the agenda of the
meeting in coordination with the Corpaorate
Secretary, taking into  consideration the
suggestions of the CEQ, Management and the
directors; and

(i) Maintain qualitative and timely lines of
communication and information between the
Board and Management. (Section C, Article IIf, KPHI
Amended Manual on Corporate Governance)

The President, who shall be elected by the
Board of Directors from their own members,
shall have the following powers and duties:

a) He shall preside at all meetings in the
absence of the Chairman;

b} He shall sign all certificates of stock; and

¢} He shall perform all such other duties as may
be delegated to him by the Board of Directors.
(Section 3, Article V, KPHI By-Laws)




3)

4)

Explain how the board of directors plans for the succession of the CEQ/Managing Director/President and the top
key management positions? There is no succession planning but any requirements or changes in the key
management positions are supported by the Keppel Group of companies.

Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring diversity of experience and background of directors in the board?

Please explain.

Per Article Il of KPHI's Amended Manual on Corporate Governance, “KPH subscribes to the tenet that the Board
serves a crucial role in corporate leadership by serving as the governance icon and soul of the corporation. Thus,
the members of its Board are a collective mix of executive and non-executive directors who possess appropriate
expertise, knowledge and experience to guide and direct the activities of the Company within the framework of its
vision and mission, strategic objectives, policies and procedures.”

Does it ensure that at least one non-executive director has an experience in the sector or industry the company
belongs to? Please explain.

Per Article 1l of KPHI’s Amended Manual on Corporate Governance, “KPH subscribes to the tenet that the Board
serves a crucial role in corporate leadership by serving as the governance icon and soul of the corporation. Thus,
the members of its Board are a collective mix of executive and non-executive directors who possess appropriate
expertise, knowledge and experience to guide and direct the activities of the Company within the framework of its
vision and mission, strategic objectives, policies and procedures.”

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent

Directors:

Role

The President is the only
executive director of the
Company.

The President, who shall be
elected by the Board of
Directors  from their own
members, shall have the
following powers and duties:

a) He shall preside at all
meetings in the absence of the
Chairman;

b} He shall sign all certificates
of stock; and

¢} He shall perform all such
other duties as may be
delegated to him by the Board
of Directors, (Section 3, Article
V, KPHI By-Laws)

T

A director’'s office is one of
trust and confidence. He shall
act in a manner characterized
by transparency, accountability
and fairness.

it 1s the Board's responsibility
to foster the long-term success
of the Corporation, and to
sustain its competitiveness and
profitability in a manner
consistent with its corporate
objectives and the best
interests of its stockholders.

The Board should formulate
the  Corporation’s  vision,
mission, strategic abjectives,
policies and procedures that
shall guide its  activities,
including the means 1o
effectively monitor the
management’s  performance.
(Section F, Articie 11, KPHI
Amended Manual on
Corporate Governance)

"Independent director means a
person who, apart from his
fees and shareholdings, is
independent of management
and free from any business or
other relationships  which
could, or could reasonably be
perceived to, materially
interfere with his exercise of
independent  judgment in
carrying out his responsibilities
as a director x xx.” (Section 1,
Article 11, KPHI By-Laws)

Accountabilities

Subject to the same temporary
ond permanent
disqualifications under Section
D, Article i, of the Company’s
Amended Monual on
Corporate Governance.

Subject to the same temporary
and permanent
disquolifications under Section
D, Article Ill, of the Company's
Amended Manuol on
Corporate Governance.

Subject to the same temporary
ond permonent
disqualifications under Section
D, Article ), of the Company’s
Amended Manual on
Corporate Governance.

In addition, an Independent
Director shall be disqualified if:

a. He becomes an officer or

employee of the corporation
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where he is such member of
the board of directors, or
becomes any of the persons
enumerated under Section 1
{5) of the Code on Corporate
Governance;

b. His benefictal security
ownership exceeds two
percent [2%) of the
outstanding capital stock of
the company where he is such
director;

¢. Fails, without any justifiable
cause, to attend at least 50%
of the total number of board
meetings during his
incumbency; and

d. Such other disqualifications
which the company’s Manual
on Corporate Governance
provide.

{Section 5, Article 111, KPHI By-
Laws)

Deliverables

In addition to the Executive
Director’s  deliverables  as
President, he shall also have
the following responsibilities:

a} Implement a process for the
selection to ensure a mix of
competent  directors  and
officers who can add value and
contribute independent
judgment to the formulation of
sound corporate strategies and
policies. Appoint competent,
professional, honest  and
highly-motivated management
officers. Adopt an effective
succession planning program
for Management.

b} Provide sound strategic
policies and guidelines to the
Corporation on major capital
expenditures. Establish
programs that can sustain its
long-term viability and
strength. Periodically evaluate
and monitor the
implementation of  such
policies and strategies,
including the business plans,

operating budgets and
Management's overali
performance.

¢} Ensure the Corporation’s
faithful compliance with all
applicable laws, regulations
and best business practices.

d} Establish and maintain an
effective investor relations
program that will keep the
stockholders  informed  of
important developments on
the Corporation. If feasible, the
Company's CEQ or chief
financial officer shall exercise
oversight responsibility over
this program.

a) Implement a process for the
selection to enpsure a mix of
competent  directors  and
officers who can add value and
contribute independent
judgment to the formulation of
sound corporate strategies and
policies. Appoint competent,
professional, honest and
highly-motivated management
officers. Adopt an effective
succession planning program
for Management,

b) Provide sound strategic
policies and guidelines to the
Corporation on major capital
expenditures. Establish
programs that can sustain its
long-term viability and
strength. Pericdically evaluate
and monitor the
implementation of  such
policies and strategies,
including the business plans,

operating hudgets and
Management’s overall
performance.

¢} Ensure the Corporation’s
faithful compliance with all
applicable laws, regulations
and best business practices.

d) Establish and maintain an
effective investor relations
program that will keep the
stockholders  informed  of
important developments on
the Corporation. If feasible, the
Company’s CEO or chief
financial officer shall exercise
oversight responsibility over
this program.

e} Identify the sectors in the
community in  which the
Corporation operates or are
directly affected by its
operations, and formulate a

Same deliverables as that of a
regular director.
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e) ldentify the sectors in the
community in  which the
Corporation operates or are
directly affected by its
operations, and formulate a
clear policy of accurate, timely
and effective communication
with them.

f} Adopt a system of check and
balances within the Board. A
regular  review of the
effectiveness of such system
should be conducted to ensure
the integrity of the decision-
making and reporting
processes at all times. There
should be a continuing review
of the corporation's internal
control system in order to
maintain  its adequacy and
effectiveness.

g} Identify key risk areas and
key performance indicators
and monitor these factors with
due diligence to enable the
Corporation to anticipate and
prepare for possible threats to
its operational and financial
viability.

h) Formulate and implement
policies and procedures that
would ensure the integrity and
transparency of related party
transactions between and
among the corporation and its
parent company, joint
ventures, subsidiaries,
associates, affiliates, major
stockholders, officers and
directors,  including  their
spouses, children and
dependent siblings and
parents, and of interfocking
director  relationships by
members of the Board,

i} Endeavor to provide
appropriate technology and
utilize available resources to
ensure a competitive position’

k) Constitute an  audit,
noemination, compensation and
remuneration committees, and
such other committees it
deems necessary to assist the
Board in the performance of its
duties and responsibilities and
which shall aid to the
attainment of corporate goals,

I} Establish and maintain an
alternative dispute resolution
sysiemn in the Corporation that
can amicably settle conflicts or
differences  between  the
Corporation and its
stockholders, and the
Corporation and third parties,
including  the  regulatory

clear policy of accurate, timely
and effective communication
with them,

f) Adopt a system of check and
balances within the Board. A
regular  review of the
effectiveness of such system
should be conducted to ensure
the integrity of the decision-
making and reporting
processes at all times. There
shoudd be a continuing review
of the corporation's internal
control system in order to
maintain its adeguacy and
effectiveness.

g) identify key risk areas and
key performance indicators
and monitor these factors with
due diligence to enable the
Corporation to anticipate and
prepare for possible threats to
its operational and financial
viability.

h) Formulate and implement
policies and procedures that
would ensure the integrity and
transparency of related party
transactions between and
among the corporation and its
parent company, joint
ventures, subsidiaries,
associates, affiliates, major
stockholders, officers and
directors, including  their
spouses, children and
dependent siblings and
parents, and of interlocking
director  relationships by
members of the Board,

i} Endeavor to provide
appropriate technology and
utilize available resources to
ensure a competitive position’

k}  Constitute an  audit,
nomination, compensation and
remuneration committees, and
such other committees it
deems necessary to assist the
Board in the performance of its
duties and responsibilities and
which shall aid to the
attainment of corporate goals.

1} Establish and maintain an
alternative dispute resolution
system in the Corporation that
can amicably settle conflicts or
differences  between  the
Corporation and its
stockholders, and the
Corporation and third parties,
including  the regulatory
authorities.

m} Properly discharge Board
functions by meeting regularly
or frequently as may be
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authorities.

m} Properly discharge Board
functions by meeting regularly
or frequently as may be
needed, and the minutes of
such meetings shall be duly
recorded. Independent views
during Board meetings shalt be
encouraged and given due
consideratian.

n) Keep the activities and
decisions of the Board within
its authority under the articles
of incorporation and by-laws,
and in  accordance with
existing laws, rules and
regulations.

o} Appoint a Compliance
Officer.

p) Define the duties and
responsibilities of the Chief
Executive Officer/President
and select or approve an
individual with appropriate
ability, integrity and
experience to perform the role
of the Chief Executive
Officer/President.

Q) Review proposed senior
management  appointments
and ensure the selection,
appointment and retention of
qualified and competent
management.

r} Review the Corporation’s
personnel and human resource
policy and sufficiency, conflict
of interest situations, changes
to the compensation plan for
employees and officers and
management succession plans.
(Section F, Article 1ll, KPH
Amended Manual on
Corporate Governance)

needed, and the minutes of
such meetings shall be duly
recorded. Independent views
during Board meetings shall be
encouraged and given due
consideration.

n} Keep the activities and
decisions of the Board within
its authority under the articles
of incorporation and by-laws,
and in accordance  with
existing laws, rules and
regulations.

0) Appoint a Compliance
Officer,

p] Define the duties and
responsibilities of the Chief
Executive Officer/President
and select or apprave an
individual with appropriate
ability, integrity and
experience to perform the role
of the Chief Executive
Officer/President.

g) Review proposed senior
management  appointments
and ensure the selection,
appointment and retention of
gualified and competent
management.

r) Review the Corporation’s
personnel and human resource
policy and sufficiency, conflict
of interest situations, changes
to the compensation plan for
employees and officers and
management succession plans.
{Section F, Article [, KPHI
Amended Manual on
Corporate Governance)

Provide the company’s definition of "independence" and describe the company’s compliance to the definition.

Per Article 1li of KPHI's By-Laws, an “[ijndependent director means a person who, apart from his fees and
shareholdings, is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which could, or
could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his exercise of independent judgment in carrying out

his responsibilities as a director in any covered company x xx.”

At present, the independent directors Messrs. Vivas and Mirasol:

are not directors or officers of the Company or of its related companies or any of its substantial
shareholders except in their capacities as independent directors of any of the foregoing;

do not own more than two percent (2%) of the shares of the Company and/or its related companies or
any of its substantial shareholders;
are not related to any director, officer or substantial shareholder of the Company, any of its related
companies or any of its substantial shareholders (for this purpose, relatives include spouse, parent, child,
brother, sister, and the spouse of such child, brother or sister);
are not acting as nominees or representatives of any director or substantial shareholder of the Company,




5)

vi.

vit.

and/for any of its related companies and/or any of its substantial shareholders, pursuant to Deeds of
Trust or under any other contracts or arrangements;

have not been employed in any executive capacity by the Company, any of its related companies and/or
any of its substantial shareholders within the last two (2) years;

are not retained, either personally or through their firms or any similar entities, as professional advisers
by the Company, any of its related companies or by any of its substantial shareholders within the last two
(2) years;

have not engaged and do not engage in any transaction with the Company and/or with any of its related
companies andfor with any of its substantial shareholders, whether by themselves and/or with other
persons and/or through a firm of which they are partners and/or a company of which they are directors
or substantial shareholders, other than transactions which are conducted at arms-length are immaterial.

Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors? if after two years, the
company wishes to bring back an independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for no
more than four additional years? Please explain.

Aside from adherence to SEC rules and regulations which include SEC Memaorandum Circular No. 9, series of 2011,
which provides for term {imits and a “cooling off” period for independent directors, the Company has no other

policy regarding the same.

Changes in the Board of Directors {Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)

(a) Resignation/Death/Removal

Indicate any changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that happened during the period:

Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco

Director

14 May 2015

Resignation

{b} Selection/Appointment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and Suspension

Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disqualification, removal, reinstatement

and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors.

Provide details of the processes adopted

{including the frequency of election) and the criteria employed in each procedure:

(i} Executive Directors

The general management of the
Corpaoration shall be vested in a board
of directors composed of nine {9)
members who shall be stockholders
and who shall serve until the election
and qualification of their successors.
Any vacancy in the Board of Directors
shall be filled by a majority vote of the
Board of Directors provided that the
remaining directors  constitute a
quorurn. The directors or director so
chosen shall serve for the unexpired
term.

(i) Holder of at least ane (1) share of
stock of the Corporation;

(ii) At least a college graduate or
holder of equivalent academic
degree;

(iii) At least twenty one {21) years
old;

(iv) Membership in good standing in
refevant industry, business ar
professional organizations;

[v) Previous business experience;
{vi} Practical understanding of the
business of the Company;

(vii) Proven to possess integrity and
probity;

[viit) Assiduous; and

(ix} Such other gqualifications as the
Noeminations Committee may
reasenably reguire based on the
nature and requirements of the
position at stake.

(if) Non-Executive Directors

same as above

same as obove
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{iii} Independent Directors

Nomination of independent director/s
shall be conducted by the
[Nominations} Committee prior to
stockholders’ meeting. Al
recommendations shall be signed by
the nominating stockholders together
with the acceptance and conformity by
the would-be nominees.

The Committee shall pre-screen the
qualifications and prepare a final list of
all candidates and put in place
screening polficies and parameters to
enable it to effectively review the
qualifications of the nominees for
independent director/s.

After the nomination, the Committee
shall prepare a Final List of Candidates
which shall contain ali the information
about all  the nominees for
independent directors, as required
under Part IV(A) and (C} of Annex "C”
of SRC Rule 12, which list, shall be
made available to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“Commission”}
and to all stockholders through the
filing and distribution of the
Information Statement, in accordance
with SRC Rule 20, or in such other
reports the company is required to
submit to the Commission. The name
of the person or group of persons who
recommended the nomination of the
independent  director shall be
identified in such report including any
relationship with the nominee.

Only nominees whose names appear
an the Final List of Candidates shalt be
eligible for election as Independent
Director/s. No other nomination shall
be entertained after the Final List of
Candidates shall have been prepared.
No further nomination shall be
entertained or allowed on the floor
during the actual annual stockholders’
meeting.

(i) He shall have at least one (1) share
of stock of the corporation;

(i} He shall be at least a college
graduate or he shall have been
engaged or exposed to the business
of the corporation for at least five (5)
years;

(i) He shall possess integrity and
probity; and

(iv)He shall be assiduous.

(i} Executive Directors

Some as that for
selection/appointment

Same as that for
selection/appointment

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

Same as that for
selection/appointment

Same as that for
selection/appointment

(iii) independent Directors

Same os that for
selection/appointment

Same as thot for
selection/appointment; in addition,
{i) a regulor director who resigns or
whose term ends on the day of the
election shall  only qudlify for
nomingtion ond election as an
independent Director after a twa (2)
year "cooling-off period”; {ii)Persons
oppointed as Chairman "Emeritus”,
“Ex Officio  Directors/Officers or
members of any Executive Advisory
Board, or otherwise appointed in a
copacity to assist the Board in the
performence of its duties ond
responsibilities shall be subject to a
one (1) year “cooling-off period” prior
to his qualification as on Independent
Director.
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{i) Executive Directors

Any director or trustee of a
corporation may be removed from
office by a vote of the stockholders
holding or representing at [east two-
thirds {2/3) of the outstanding capital
stock x xx; Provided, That such
removal shall take place either at a
regular meeting of the corporation or
at a special meeting called for the
purpose, and in either case, after
previous notice to stockholders x xx of
the corporation of the intention to
propose such removal at the meeting,
A special meeting of the stockholders x
xx of a corporation for the purpose of
removal of directors x xxor any of
them, must be called by the secretary
on order of the president or on the
written demand of the stockholders
representing or holding at least a
majority of the outstanding capital
stock, x xx on the written demand of a
majority of the members entitled to
vote. Should the secretary fail or
refuse to call the special meeting upon
such demand or fail or refuse to give
the notice, or if there is no secretary,
the call for the meeting may be
addressed directly to the stockholders
x xxby any stockholder x xxof the
corporation signing the demand.
Notice of the time and place of such
meaeting, as well as of the intention to
propose such rermoval, must be given
by publication or by written notice
prescribed in this Code, Remaval may
be with or without cause:
Provided, That removal without cause
may not be used to deprive minority
stockholders x xxof the right of
representation to which they may be
entitied under Section 24 of this
Code.” {Section 28, Corporation Code
of the Philippines)

(i} Any person convicted by final
judgment or order by a competent
judicial or administrative body of any
crime that:
{a) involves the purchase or sale
of securities, as defined under
the Securities Regulation Code;
{b) arises out of the person's
conduct as an underwriter,
broker, dealer, investment
adviser, principal, distributor,
mutual fund dealer, futures
commission merchant,
commodity trading advisor, or
floor broker; or
{c} arises out of his fiduciary
relationship with a bank, guasi-
bank, trust company,
investment house or as an
affiliated person of any of them.
{il) Any person who, by reason of
misconduct, after  hearing, s
permanently enjoined by a final
judgment or order of the Commission
or any court or administrative body
of competent jurisdiction from:
{a)acting as underwriter, broker,
dealer investment  adviser,
principal  distributor, mutual
fund dealer, futures commission
merchant, commodity trading
advisor, or floor broker;
blacting as director ar officer of
a bank, quasi-bank, trust
company, investment house, or
investment company;
[¢) engaging in or continuing any
conduct or practice in any of the
capacities mentioned in sub-
paragraphs {a) and (b} above, or
willfully violating the laws that
govern securities and banking
activities.
The disqualification shall also apply if
such person is currently the subject
of an order of the Securities &
Exchange Commission (SEC or the
“Commission”) or any court or
administrative body denying,
revoking or  suspending  any
registration, license or permit issued
to him under the Corporation Code,
Securities Regulation Code or any
other law administered by the
Commissicn or BangkoSentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP), or under any rule or
regulation issued by the Commissicn
or BSP, or has otherwise been
restrained to engage in any activity
involving securities and banking; or
such person is currently the subject
of an effective order of a self-
regulatory organization suspending
or expelling him from membership,
participation or association with a
member or participant of the
prganization;
(i) Any person convicted by final
judgment or order by a court or
competent administrative body of an
offense involving moral turpitude,
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fraud, embezzlement, theft, estafa,
counterfeiting, misappropriation,
forgery, bribery, false affirmation,
perjury or other fraudulent acts;

(iv) Any person who has been
adjudged by final judgment or Order
of the Securities & Commission,
court, or other competent
administrative body to have willfully
violated, or willfully aided, abetted,
counseled, induced or procured the
viclation of any provision of the
Corporation Code, Securities
Repgulation Code or any other law
administered by the Commission or
BSP, or any of its rule, regulation or
order;

(v) Any person earlier elected as
independent director who becomes
an officer, employee or consultant of
the same corporation;

{vi} Any person judicially declared as
insolvent;

{vit} Any person found guilty by final
judgment or order of a foreign court
or equivalent financial regulatory
authority of acts, violations or
misconduct similar to any of the acts,
violations er misconduct enumerated
in sub-paragraphs {i) to {v) above;
(viit) Conviction by final judgment of
an offense punishable by
imprisonment for a period exceeding
six {6} years, or a violation of the
Corporation Code committed within
five (5) years prior to the date of his
election or appointment; and

{ix) Such other grounds as the
Committee may reasonably provide
as a disqualification.

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

same as above

same as above

{iii} Independent Directors

same as above

same as above; in addition, a. He
becomes an officer or employee of
the corporation where he is such
member of the board of directars, or
becomes any of the persons
enumerated under Section 1l {5) of
the Code on Corporate Governance;
b, His beneficial security ownership
exceeds two percent (2%) of the
outstanding capital stock of the
campany where he is such director;

¢, Fails, without any justifiable cause,
to attend at least 50% of the total
number of board meetings during his
incumbency; and

d. Such other disqualifications which
the company’s Manual on Corporate
Governance provide.

{i} Executive Directors

“Any director or trustee of a

corporation may be removed from
office by a vote of the stockholders
holding or representing at least two-
thirds (2/3} of the cutstanding capital
stock x xx; Provided, That such
removal shall take place either at a
regular meeting of the corporation or
at a special meeting called for the
purpose, and in either case, after
previous notice to stockholders x xx of

{i} Refusal te comply with the
disclosure requirements of the
Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations.
The disqualification shall be in effect
as long as the refusal persists.

{ii) Absence in more than fifty (50)
percent of all regular and special
meetings of the Board during his
incumbency, or any twelve (12)
month period during the said
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the corporation of the intenticn to
propose such removal at the meeting.
A special meeting of the stockholders x
xx of a corporation for the purpose of
removal of directors x xxor any of
them, must be calted by the secretary
on order of the president or an the
written demand of the stockholders
representing or holding at least a
majority of the outstanding capital
stock, x xx on the written demand of a
majority of the members entitled to
vote. Should the secretary faill or
refuse to call the special meeting upon
such demand or fail or refuse to give
the notice, or if there is no secretary,
the call for the meeting may be
addressed directly to the stockholders
x xxby any stockholder x xxof the
cerporation  signing the demand.
Notice of the time and place of such
meeting, as well as of the intention to
prapose such removal, must be given
by publication or by written notice
prescribed in this Code. Removal may
be with or without cause: Provided,
That removal without cause may not
be used to deprive minority
stockholders x xxof the right of
representation to which they may be
entitted under Section 24 of this
Code.” (Section 28, Corporation Code
of the Philippines)

incumbency, unless the absence is
due to illness, death in the
immediate family or serious accident.
The disqualification shall apply for
purposes of the succeeding election.
(iti) Dismissal or termination for cause
as director of any corporation
covered by this Manual, The
disquatification shall be in effect until
he has cleared himself from any
involvement in the cause that gave
rise to his dismissal or termination.
(iv) I the beneficial equity ownership
of an independent director in the
corporation or its subsidiaries and
affiliates exceeds two percent of its
subscribed  capital stock, The
disqualification shall be lifted if the
limit is later complied with.

{v} If any of the judgments or orders
cited in the grounds for permanent
disqualification has not yet become
final.

(ii) Non-Executive Directors

some as above

some as obove

{iti} Independent Directors

o

some gs gbove

same as above

{i) Executive Directors

As provided in Section 28, Corporation
Code of the Philippines

Removal may be with or without

cause: Provided, That rermoval
without cause may not be used to
deprive minority stockholders x xxof
the right of representation to which
they may be entitled under Section
24 of this Code.” (Section 28,
Corporaticn Code of the Philippines)

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

same gs above

same as above

{iii) Independent Directors

same as above

same as above

(i) Executive Directors

No provision for reinstatement

No provision for reinstatement

(i) Non-Executive Directors

No provision for reinstatement

No provision far reinstatement

(it} Independent Directors

No provision for reinstatement

Ne provision for reinstatement

(i) Executive Directors

Suspenston from office shall be

imposed in case of second violation.
The duration of the suspension shall
depend on the gravity of the violation.
{Article XI, KPHI Manual on Corporate
Governance)

Non-compliance with the Manual on
Corporate Governance, (Article X1,

KPHI Manual on
Governance)

Corporate

{il) Non-Executive Directors

same as cbove

same as above

{ili} Independent Directors

same as above

same os obove
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6)

Voting Result of 19 june 2015 Annual General Meeting

Orientation and Education Program

(a)

(b)

(c}

Chow Yew Yuen

100% of sh

oting

Stefan Tong WaiMun

100% of shares present and voting

Celso P. Vivas 100% of shares present and voting
Noel M, Mirasol 100% of shares present and voting
Enrico L. Cordoba 100% of shares present and voting
TohKo Lin

100% of shares present and voting

Benjamin P. Mata

100% of shares present and voting

Ma. Melva E. Valdez

100% of shares present and voting

Felicidad V. Razon

100% of shares present and voting

Disclose details of the company’s orientation program for new directors, if any.
A new director or a senior manager is required to attend Corporate Governance Seminar.

State any in-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senior Management® for the past

three (3) years: See below

Continuing education programs for directors: programs and seminars and roundtables attended during the

year.

{President/Director)

Governance Forum

= Institution’
Chow Yew Yuen 15 October 2015 SEC-PSE Corporate Securities and Exchange
{Chairman/Director) Governance Forum Commission
Stefan Tong Wai Mun 15 October 2015 SEC-PSE Corporate Securities and Exchange

Commiission

Celso P. Vivas 15 October 2015 SEC-PSE Corporate Securities and Exchange

{independent Director) Governance Farum Commission

Noel M. Mirasol 15 October 2015 SEC-PSE Corporate Securities and Exchange

{independent Director) Governance Forum Commission

Enrico L. Cordoba 30 October 2015 Corporate Governance Risk, Opportunities,

{Director) Assessment & Management
{ROAM), Inc.

TohKo Lin 15 October 2015 SEC-PSE Corporate Securities and Exchange

{Director) Governance Forum Commission

Ma. Melva E. Valdez
{Director/Corporate Secretary)

15 QOctober 2015

SEC-PSE Corporate
Governance Forum

Securities and Exchange
Commission

Felicidad V. Razon
{Director/Treasurer/
Compliance Officer/
Corporate information Officer)

15 October 2015

SEC-PSE Corporate
Governance Forum

Securities and Exchange
Commission

* senior Management refers to the CEQ and other persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the company.
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1}

CODE OF BUSINESS CONBUCT & ETHICS

Discuss briefly the company’s policies on the following business conduct or ethics affecting directors, senior

management and employees:

As guided by the Keppel Group's Code of Conduct, the Group considers it important that employees understand
the rules of conduct the Group operates and which they are accountable and the consequences of non-adherence
to the rules, thus the Code of Conduct is disseminated to all employees of Keppel Group here and abroad.

{a}

Conflict of Interest

Employees must avoid any conflict between their own interests and the interest of the
Group. This includes transaction in securities of the Group, any affiliate, and any non-
affiliate organization, in dealing with suppliers, customers and other third parties.
Employees are required to declare immediately any immediate relationship with the
Director or the CEQ, direct reporting relationships between an employee and his immediate
family members, any ownership interest in any supplier, customer, etc.

(b)

Conduct of Business
and Fair Dealings

This addresses standards of ethical business behavior including anti-corruption, the offering
and receiving of gifts, hospitality and promotional expenditures and dealings with Keppel
associates.

While it is recognized that giving and receiving gifts and hospitality payments may help in
the building of business relationships, good judgment must be exercised at ali times. The
offer and receipts of gifts, hospitality or expense must be avoided whenever they could

affect or perceived to affect the cutcome of business transactions or dealings, or are not

(c) Receipt of gifts from reasonable and bona fide, Employees should avoid giving or receiving of gifts or hospitality
third parties {including entertainment, meals, tickets to social, entertainment or sports events, etc)
which is excessive in value, given too often, or leaves the employee or (as the case may be)
the other person in a position of obligation. Gifts in the form of cash or cash equivalent
should be avolded.
To conduct business with integrity, fairly and impartially, in an ethical and proper manner,
{d) Compliance with Laws fand in'compliance wiFh all applic.able I.aws-and rfegulations. 'ln conducting our bLljsiness,

& Regulations integrity ‘rr?ust underline all relatlon-shlps, |nc!EJd|ng those with custorr!ers, suppliers,
communities and employees. In this connection, employees are required toc have the
strength to do what they believe to be right in difficult situations.

Employees must always act in the best interests of the Company; must at all times act
fe} Respect for Trade honestly and use reasonable care, skill and diligence in the discharge of their duties and

Secrc_ets/Use of l‘\lon- responsibilities; should not place himself in a position where his duty to the relevant Group

public Information company and his personal interest may conflict; must employ the powers and assets that
they are entrusted with for the purposes authorized by the relevant Group Company; must

{f) Useof Company Funds, { not make improper use of any information acquired by virtue of his position to gain
Assets and Information { advantage for himself or for any other person or to cause detriment 1o a Group Company.
(g) Employment & Labor Management and employees adheres to the government regulations and standards.

Laws & Palicies

{h)

Disciplinary action

Appropriate disciplinary action, including suspension or termination of employment, will be
taken in the event that an employee is found to have viclated the rules of conduct of the
Company.

(i)

Whistle Blower

The purpose of this policy is to encourage the reporting in good faith of suspected
reportable conduct by establishing clearly defined processes through which such reports
may be made with confidence that employees and other persons making such reports will
be treated fairly and, to the extent possible, protected from reprisal. It should be noted
however that employees and other persons who file reports or provide evidence which they
know to be false, or without a reasonable belief in the truth and accuracy of such
information, will not be protected by this policy and may be subject to administrative
and/or disciplinary action including termination of employment and other contract, as the
case may be.

(i)

Conflict Resolution

In all instances, the Company retains the prerogative to determine the circumstances
warrant an investigation and, in conformity with the policy and applicable laws and
regulations, the appropriate investigative process to be employed and corrective or
remedial actions to take.
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2)

3)

Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to all directors, senior management and employees? Copies
of the Keppel Group’s code of ethics or conduct have been provided to all officers and employees.

Discuss how the company implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct. Employees
are encouraged to report violations of the Keppel Group’s code of ethics or conducts in accordance with the
procedure set out in the Keppel Whistle-Blower Protection Policy.

Related Party Transactions

{38) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company’s policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification, monitering and
recording of related party transactions between and among the company and its parent, joint ventures,
subsidiaries, associates, affiliates, substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses,
children and dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships of members of the

Board.

(1) Parent Company

(2) Joint Ventures

(3) Subsidiaries

{4) Entities Under Common Control

(5) Substantial Stockholders

(6) Officers including

spouse/children/siblings/parents

(7) Directors inciuding

spouse/children/siblings/parents

of Board of Directors

(8) Interlocking director relationship

None. However, as per employees code of conduct, employees
must avoid any conflict between their own interests and the
interest of the Group. This includes transaction in securities of the
Group, any affiliate, and any non-affiliate organization, in dealing
with suppliers, customers and other third parties. Employees are
required to declare immediately any immediate relationship with
the Director or the CEQ, direct reporting relationships between an
employee and his immediate family members, any ownership
interest in any supplier, customer, etc.

(b} Conflict of Interest

(i} Directors/Officers and 5% or more Shareholders

Identify any actual or probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or more shareholders

may be involved.

Name of Director/s

Name of Officer/s

None

Name of Significant Shareholders

None

{ii) Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and resolve any possible conflict of interest
between the company and/or its group and their directors, officers and significant shareholders

1ifi

Company

Group

Please refer to the Keppel Group’s Code of Business Conducts and

Ethics
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5) Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations - None

{a} Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a family,4 commercial, contractual or business nature that exists
between the holders of significant equity (5% or more), to the extent that they are known to the company:

i

None Mone Nane
None None None
None None None
None None None

(b} Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the
holders of significant equity (5% or more) and the company: None

None None None
None Naone None
None None None
None None None

{c) Indicate any shareholder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of
the company: None

None None Nong

None Nong None

6) Alternative Dispute Resolution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last three (3) years in amicably
settling conflicts or differences between the corpeoration and its stockholders, and the corporation and third
parties, including regulatory authorities. None

Corporation & Stockholders
Corporation & Third Parties
Corporation & Regulatory Authorities

4Family relationship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.
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C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

1}

2)

3)

5)

Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year? At the beginning of the year.
The Board of Directors regularly conduct quarterly meetings with special meetings conducted when the need
arises.

Attendance of Directors

Chairman Chow Yew Yuen 19 June 2015 6 6 100%* |
Memher Stefan Tong WaiMun 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Independent Celso P. Vivas 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Independent Noel M. Mirasol 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Member Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco* 19 June 2015 6 1 100%
Member Enrico L. Cordoba** 19 June 2015 6 3 100%**
Member TohKo Lin 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Member Benjamin P. Mata 15 June 2015 5 6 100%
Member Ma. Melva E. Valdez 19 June 2015 6 6 100%
Member Felicidad v. Razon 19 June 2015 6 6 100%

*resigned as Director of KPHI on 14 May 2015
**elected as director only on 19 June 2015

Do non-executive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the presence of any executive? |f
yes, how many times? No.

Is the minimum quorum requirement for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board members? Please explain. No.
Per Section 2, Article Il of the Company’s By-Laws, “xxxmajority of the directors shall be necessary at all the
meetings to constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business, and every decision of majority of the
quorum duly assembled as a Board shall be valid as a corporate act, except in the case of electing a director/s to
fill up a vacancy in the Board.”

Access to Information

(a)

(b)

(e}

How many days in advance are board papers5 for board of directors meetings provided to the board?

As practiced, board papers are required to be sent to the directors at least seven days before the board
meeting so that the members may have better understanding of the matters prior to the meeting and they
will have time to discuss any questions they may have.

Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?
The directors are provided with the names and contact details of the Company's managers and corporate
secretaries to facilitate direct access to them.

State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chairman in
preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of directors, keeping directors updated regarding any
relevant statutory and regulatory changes, etc?

Yes. The Corporate Secretary is an officer of the Corporation who is a resident and citizen of the Philippines.
At the most basic level, the Corporate Secretary is the ane in charge of issuing notices of all meetings of
directors and stockholders, drawing and keeping the minutes of meetings, safekeeping of the books, records
and seal of the Corporation, rendering such reports and performing such other duties which are incidental to
his/her office. The Corporate Secretary also ensures that Board members have the proper advice and
resources for discharging their fiduciary duties, is responsible for ensuring that the records of the Board's
actions reflect the proper exercise of those fiduciary duties, and provides advice on corporate governance
issues.

® Board papers consist of complete and adequate information about the matters to be taken in the board meeting.

Information includes the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures, budgets,
forecasts and internal financial documents.

23



6)

7}

{d)

(e)

Is the company secretary trained in legal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? Please explain
should the answer be in the negative.

Yes. The Company’s current Corporate Secretary, Atty. Ma. Melva E. Valdez, is a holder of degrees of Bachelor
of Arts in Political Science and Bachelor of Laws from the University of the Philippines. She has been the
Corporate Secretary of the Company since 1998 and a Director since 2001 and a Senior Partner of the law
firm of Jimenez Gonzales Bello Valdez Caluya and Fernandez Law Offices {IGLaw). She is also currently the
Corporate Secretary of the following companies: Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. and Mabuhay Vinyl
Corporation (both listed companies) and Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc. {a public company). She is likewise
the Corporate Secretary of Asian Institute of Management, Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc and various Keppel
companies in the Philippines, and a Director of Leighton Contractors (Phils.), Inc. Atty. Valdez has 31years
working experience in her field of profession as a lawyer.

Committee Procedures

Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to get infarmation necessary
to be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of different committees:

Yes E No E

Executive
Audit Notice of agenda is distributed to the members of the committee at

T least a week before the meeting. Emails are also sent out prior to the
Nomination . . :

- release of the agenda. Tentative schedule of meetings for the year is
Remuneration . ;
- also sent out so that directors can block their calendars ahead.

Others (specify)

External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide
details: None. However, directors are not restricted in seeking or receiving external advice.

None None
None None
None None
None None

Change/s in existing policies

Indicate, if applicable, any change/s introduced by the Board of Directors (during its most recent term) on
existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the company and the reason/s for the change:
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D. REMUNERATION MATTERS
1) Remuneration Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneration of the CEO and the four (4) most highly compensated
management officers: The Company promotes a performance-based remuneration system for its executive
director and key management personnel that is highly flexible and responsive to the market and individual
employee’s performance. The Company has only 2 management officers, the President and the Treasurer.

anagement Officers’

(1) Fixed remuneration As decided by the Chairman As decided by the CEQ
(2} Variable remuneration None None
(3} Per diem allowance None None
As decided by the Chairman, based As decided by the CEQ, based on
(4) Bonus on financial and operating financial and operating
performance of the Company performance of the Company
B -
(. )Sto'ck-Optlons and other None None
financial instruments
(6) Others (specify) As decided by the Chairman As decided by the CEO

2) Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Disclose the company’s policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation package. Explain how the
compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is calculated.

Under the Company’s By-Laws, directors shall receive such compensation for their services from time to time as
may be fixed by the stockholders. There are no warrants or options held by the Company’s officers and directors.
The Company does not have any other arrangements pursuant to which any director is compensated directly or
indirectly for any services provided as a director. There are also no special employment contracts with executive
officers of the Company. The Company has no existing options, warrants or right to purchase securities.

Executive Directors The Chairman is responsible for the compensation package of the Executive or the CEO.

The non-executive directors’ annual compensation is approved by the shareholders

Non-Executive Directors during the annual general meeting and disclosed in the SEC 17C.

Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remuneration (fees, allowances, benafits-
in-kind and other emoluments) of board of directors? Provide details for the last three (3) years. Yes.

Fixed amount {Php60,000.00) 19 June 2015
Fixed amount {Php60,000.00) 28 May 2014
Fixed amount (Php60,000.00} 06 June 2013
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3}

4)

Aggregate Remuneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the most recent year:

{a)

Fixed Remuneration

{b)

Variable Remunaration

{c)

Per diem Allowance

{d}

Bonuses

{e)

Stock Options and/or other
financial instruments

{f)

Others (Specify)

Php4,565,000 as stated
inthe 17A and 15

Php336,000 as stated

inthe 17A and 15

Php152,000 as statad
inthe 17A and 1S

None

Stoc

{a)

Advances None None
Credit granted None None None
Pension Plan/s Contributions None None None

(d) Pension Plans, Obligations incurred None None None
(e) Life Insurance Premium None None None
(f} Hospitalization Plan None None None
(g} CarPlan None None None
(h) Others (Specify) None None None
None None Nane

k Rights, Options and Warrants

Board of Directors

Complete the following table, on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who own or are entitled
to stock rights, options or warrants over the company’s shares:

Chow Yew Yuen None None N/A N/A
Stefan Tong WaiMun Nong None N/A N/A
Celso P, Vivas None None N/A N/A
Noel M. Mirasol None Nong N/A N/A
Enrico L. Cordoba None None N/A N/A
TohKo Lin None None N/A N/A
Benjamin P. Mata None None N/A N/A
Ma. Melva E. Valdez None None N/A N/A
Felicidad V. Razon None None N/A N/A
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{b} Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs introduced, including the criteria

used in the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting:

None None None
None None None
None None None

5) Remuneration of Management

Identify the five {5) members of management who are not at the same time executive directors and indicate the
total remuneration received during the financial year:

There is only one member of the management who is Remuneration included in D.3 above, as stated in the
not at the same time executive director. 17A and IS.

E. BOARD COMMITYEES

1) Number of Members, Functions and Responsibilities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key responsibilities and the
power/authority delegated to it by the Board:

The Cammittee shall perform tasks delegated to it from time
to time by the Board of Directors, subject to applicable laws
and except on the following matters:

a.Approval of any action for which shareholders’ approval is
also required;

b.The filling of vacancies in the board;

Executive 1 2 0 N/A c.The amendment ar repeal of by-laws or the adoption of
new by—laws;

d.The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the board
which by its express terms are not so amenable or
repealable; and

e.A distribution of cash dividends to the shareholders.
{Section 2, Article IV, KPHI By-Laws; Section K, Article [li, KPH!
Manual on Corparate Governance)

The Audit Committee shall have the foliowing functions:

ajAssist the Board in the performance of its oversight
responsibility for the financial reporting process, system of

Audit internat control, audit process, and monitaring of compliance
Audit 1 2 2 Committee with applicable laws, rules and regulations;
Charter

b)Provide oversight over Management's activities in
managing credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal and
other risks of the corporation. This function shall include
regular receipt from Management of information on risk
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exposures and risk management activities;

¢)Pre-approve all audit plans, scope and frequency one {1}
month before the conduct of external audit.

djPerform oversight functions over the internal and external
auditors. It should ensure that the internal and external
auditors act independently from each other, and that both
auditors are given unrestricted access to all records,
properties and personnel to enable them to perform their
respective audit functions;

ejReview the annual internal audit plan to ensure its
conformity with the objectives of the corporation. The plan
shall include the audit scope, resources and budget necessary
to implement it;

f)Prior to the commencement of the audit, discuss with the
external auditor the nature, scope and expenses of the audit,
and ensure proper coordination if more than cne audit firm is
involved in the activity to secure proper coverage and
minimize duplication of efforts;

g)Organize an internal audit department, and consider the
appointment of an independent internal auditor and the
terms and conditions of its engagement and removal;

h)Maonitor and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Corporation's internal control system, including financial
reporting control and information technology security;

i)Review the reports submitted by the internal and externai
auditors;

J)Review the accounts, quarterly, half-year and annual
financial statements of the Company before submission to
the Board of Directors and/or stockholders for approval, with
particular focus on the following matters:

*Any change/s in accounting policies and, practices
*Major judgmental areas

sSignificant adjustments resulting from the audit

*Going concern assumptions

*Compliance with accounting standards

*Compliance with tax, legal and regulatary requirements.

kiCoordinate, monitor and facilitate compliance with laws,
rules and regulations;

l}Evaluate and determine the non-audit work, if any, of the
external auditor, and review periodically the non-audit fees
paid to the external auditor in relation to their significance to
the total annual income of the external auditor and to the
Corporation's overall consultancy expenses. The committee
shall disallow any non-audit work that will conflict with his
duties as an external auditor or may pose a threat to his
independence. The non-audit work, if allowed, should be
disclosed in the Corporation's annual report;

m)Establish and identify the reporting line of the Internal
Auditor to enable him to properly fulfill his duties and
responsibilities. He shall functionalty report directly to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall ensure that, in
the performance of the work of the Internal Auditor, he shall
be free from interference by outside parties.

njReview cooperation given by the Corporation’s officers to
the external and internal auditor;

o)flevate to international standards the accounting and
auditing processes, practices and methodologies, and
develop the following in relation to this reform:
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i)Definitive timetable within which the accounting system of
the Corporation will be 100% International Accounting
Standard (1AS) compliant.

ti)An accountability statement that will specifically identify
officers and/or personnel directly responsible for the
accomplishment of such task.

plReview interested party transactions;

g)Develop a transparent financial management system that
will ensure the integrity of internal control activities
throughout the company through a step-by-step procedures
and policies handbook that will be used by the entire
organization;

r)Keep under review the non-audit fees paid to the external
auditor both in relation to their significance to the auditor
and in relation to the company’s total expenditure on
consultancy. The non-audit work should be disclosed in the
annual report and not exceed 40% of the total audit fees; and

s)Perform tasks delegated to it from time to time by the
Board of Directors, subject to applicable laws. (Section K,
Article I, KPHI Manual on Corporate Governance)

In addition, Section 5, Article 1V of KPHI’s By-Laws provides
that the Audit Committee shall:

a.Check all financial reports against its compliance with both
the internal financial management handbook and pertinent
accounting standards, including regulatory requirements;

b.Review and pre-approve audit plans of the Corporation’s
external auditors and, scope and frequency one (1) month
before the conduct of external audit;

c.Review the external auditor's evaluation and
recommendation of the systems of internal accounting
arising from their audit examination;

d.Review the accounts, quarterly, half-year and annual
financial statements of the Company before submission to
the Board of Directors and/or stockhelders for approval;

e.Review the scope and results of internal audit procedures;

f.Review cooperation given by the Company's officers to the
external and internal auditor;

g.Review interested party transactions;

h.Perform oversight financial management functions
especiatly in the areas of managing credit, market, liquidity,
operational, legal and other risks of the Corporation, and
crisis management;

i.Parform direct interface functions with the internal and
external auditors;

j.Elevate to international standards the accounting and
auditing processes, practices and methodologies, and
develop the following in refation to this reform:

1.A definitive timetable within which the accounting system
of the Corporation will be 100% International Accounting
Standard {IAS} compliant;

2.An accountability statement that will specifically identify
officers and/or personnel directly responsible for the
accomplishment of such task;

k. Develop a transparent financial management system that
will ensure the integrity of internal control activities
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throughout the Corporation through a step-by-step
procedures and policies handbook that wili be used by the
entire organization;

I.Keep under review the non-audit fees paid to the external
auditor both in relation to their significance to the auditor
and in relation to the Corporation’s total expenditure on
consultancy. The non-audit work should be disclosed in the
annual report and not exceed 40% of the total audit fees; and

m.Perform tasks delegated to it from time to time by the
Board of Directors, subject to applicable laws.

Under Section K, Article lll, KPH! Manual on Corporate
Governance, the Nomination Committee shall:

a) Pre-screen and shortlist all candidates to the Board and
other appointments that require Board approval, in
accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications
enumerated provided under this Manual, the Corporation
Code, Securities & Regulations Code, and other pertinent
rules and regulations.

b} Assess the effectiveness of the Board's processes and
procedures in the election or replacement of directors.

¢} In consultation with the Executive Committee, re-define
the role, duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive
Officer/President by Integrating the dynamic requirements of
the business as a going concern and future expansionary
prospects within the realm of good corporate governance at
all times.

Nomination 1 1 2 N/A

Under Section 3, Article IV of KPHI's By-Laws, the Nomination
Committee “shall pre-screen and shortlist all candidates
nominated to become a member of the board of directors in
accordance with the gqualifications and disqualifications
provided under the Code of Corporate Governance,

“The Nomination Committee shall, in consultation with the
Executive Committee, re-define the role, duties and
responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer/President by
integrating the dynamic requirements of the business as a
going concern and future expansionary prospects within the
realm of good corporate governance for the Board.”

Under Section K, Article Ill, KPHI Manual on Caorporate
Governance, the Compensation and Remuneration
Committee shall:

a)Establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing a policy on executive remuneration and for fixing
the remuneration packages of corporate officers and
directors, and provide oversight over remuneration of senior
management and other key personnel, ensufing that
compensation is consistent with the Corporation’s culture,
strategy and contral environment.

b)Designate amount of remuneration, which shail be in a
sufficient level to attract 2nd retain directors and officers
Remuneration 1 2 i N/A wha are needed to run the company successfully.

ciDevelop a form on Full Business Interest Disclosure as part
of the pre-employment requirements for all incoming
officers, which among others compel all officers to declare
under the penalty of perjury all their existing business
interests or shareholdings that may directly or indirectly
conflict in their performance of duties once hired.

diDisallow any director te decide his or her own
remuneration,

e)Provide in the Corporation’s annual reports, information
and proxy staternents a clear, concise and understandable
disclosure of compensation of its executive officers for the
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2)

previous fiscal year and the ensuing year.

flReview (if any) of the existing Human Resources
Development or Personnel Handbook, to strengthen
provisions on conflict of interest, salaries and benefits
policies, promotion and career advancement directives and
compliance of personnel concerned with all statutory
requirements that must be periodically met in their
respective posts.

glln the absence of such Personnel Handbook, cause the
development of such, covering the same parameters of
governance stated above.”

Others (specify) N/A N/A NfA N/A N/A N/A N/A

Committee Members

{a) Executive Committee

mniittes
Chairman/Member (ED} | Stefan Tong WaiMun 19 June 2015 0] gyears
Member {NED) Ma. Melva E. Valdez 19 June 2015 0 Syears
Member {NED} TohKo Lin 19 June 2015 0 3 years

(b} Audit Committee

i i ! L Committee,
Chairman {ID) Celso P, Vivas 19 June 2015 4 4 100% 9 years
Member (ID) Noel M. Mirasol 19 June 2015 4 4 100% 9 years
Member (ED) Stefan Tong WaiMun 19 June 2015 4 4 100% 8years
Member (NED) TohKa Lin 19 June 2015 4 4 100% lyear
Member {NED) Enrico L. Cordoba* 19 June 2015 4 2 100% Oyear

*plected as Member of the Audit Committee on 19 June 2015.
Disclose the profile or qualifications of the Audit Committee members.

Celso P. Vivas, 68, Filipino, has been elected Independent Director of Keppel Philippines Holdings since June
2005 and is currently the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Vivas is a Certified Public
Accountant and is currently Vice-Chairman and CEO of the Corporate Governance Institute of the Phifippines.
He is a member of Marubeni Foundation’s Board of Trustees and Canadian Chamber of Commerce’s Board of
Governors. He is an Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Keppel Philippines
Marine, Inc. and an Independent Director and member of the Audit Committee of Keppel Phifippines
Properties, Inc. He was formerly the Vice Chairman of Corporate Holdings Management, Inc. and Acacia
Hotel Manila. He was Risk Consulting Partner and Assurance Business Advisory Partner of SGV & Company
until his retirement in 2001. Mr. Vivas obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (Cum
Laude} from University of the East. He also obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Management from the
Asian Institute of Management (SGV & Co. Scholar). He is also a graduate of Company Directors’ Course from
Australian Institute of Company Directors {ICD Scholar). Mr. Vivas has 48years of experience in audit, finance,
enterprise risk management and corporate governance.

Noel M. Mirasol, 77, Filipino, was elected Independent Director of the Company in June 2003 and currently a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He currently serves as Special Consultant to the CEO of
International Container Terminal Services, Inc. He is also a Director and President of ICTSI Georgia Corp.-
Cayman Islands. He is also a Director of ICTS| Warehousing, Inc., Container Terminal Systems Solutions, Inc.-
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Mauritius and Guam-International Container Terminal., Inc. and other international container terminals here
and abroad. Mr. Mirasol graduated from De La Salle College, Manila with a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Mechanical Engineering. He also obtained Masters of Science Degree in Management from Rennselaer
Polytechnic Institute, New York and a PhD. in Operations Research from Case Institute of Technology,
Cleveland, Ohio. Mr. Mirasol has 48years of experience in finance in various industries.

Stefan Tong WaiMun, 42, Malaysian, was elected as President and Director in June 2007. He has been a
Director of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. since June 2007 and was elected as Director Keppel Philippines
Marine, Inc. in February 2010 and Executive Vice-President in June 2011. He is also a Director of various
Keppel companies in the Philippines. Mr. Tong graduated from University of Western Australia with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Finance (Honors). He is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He has 18years of experience in banking, finance and real
estate.

TohKo Lin, 62, Singaporean, was re-elected as 2 Director of the Company in June 2013, He has been a
Director and President of the Company since 2002 up to June 2007. He was also President of KPMI from
January 2001 until June 2011. In QOctober 2012, he was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
President of KPMI. He holds chairmanship in Keppel Subic Shipyard, Inc. as well as Keppe! Cebu Shipyard, Inc.
and also directorship in various affiliated companies in the Keppel Group. He is currently the Executive
Director of Keppel Singmarine in Singapore. Mr. Toh graduated from the University of Newcastle-upon-Tyne
in UK with a Bachelor of Science {Honors) degree in Naval Architecture. He also obtained a degree of Master
of Business Administration from the University of Western Ontario, Canada. His work experience includes 38
years in the marine industry.

Enrico L. Cordoba, 43, Filipino waselected as Director of Keppel Philippines Holdings in June 2015 and
currently a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He is a holder of 2 Master’s degree in Business
Administration at Ateneo Graduate School of Business and Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics Major
in Actuarial Science at University of Santo Tomas. He has also earned the professional designations of Fellow
of the Financial Services Institute, Fellow of the Life Management Institute, Associate in Annuity Products and
Administration, Associate in Customer Service, and Associate in Reinsurance Administration from the Life
Office Management Asscciation, as well as the designation of Associate in Research and in Planning from the
Insurance Institute of America. Currently he is the Vice President for Corporate Planning of The Insular Life
Assurance Co., Ltd. He is a regular director of the Insular Life Management and Development Corp., Insular
Life Foundation, and PP Prime Venture, Inc. He is also a Professorial Lecturer for Management Science at De
La Salle University Graduate School of Business. He has more than 21 years of experience in his area of
expertise.

Describe the Audit Committee’s responsibility relative to the external auditor.

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit plans, scope and frequency one {1) month before the conduct of
external audit and performs oversight functions over the external auditors. It also ensures that the internal
and external auditors act independently from each other, and that both auditors are given unrestricted
access to all records, properties and personne} to enable them to perform their respective audit functions.
Prior to the commencement of the audit, the Audit Committee discusses with the external auditor the nature,
scope and expenses of the audit, and ensures proper coordination if more than one audit firm is involved in
the activity to secure proper coverage and minimize duplication of efforts. {Section K(2), Article 1il, Amended
Manual on Corporate Governance)

{c) Nomination Committee

Chairman TohKo Lin 19 lune 2015 1 1 100% 3years
Member (ED) Stefan Tong WaiMun 19 june 2015 1 1 100% Byears
Member (ID) Noel M. Mirasol 19 June 2015 1 1 100% 9years
Member (ID} Celso P. Vivas 19 June 2015 1 1 100% 1vyear
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{d} Remuneration Committee

Chairman TohKo Lin 15 June 2015 0] N/A N/A lyear
Member (ED) Stefan Tong WaiMun 19 June 2015 0 N/A N/A 8years
Member (ID}) Celso P. Vivas 18 June 2015 +] N/A N/A years
Member (NED) Enrico L. Cordoha 19 June 2015 0 N/A N/A Oyear

(e} Others (Specify)

Provide the same information on all other committees constituted by the Board of Directors:

Chairman N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Member (ED) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Member (NED) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Member {ID) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Member N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

3) Changes in Committee Members
Indicate any changes in committee membership that occurred during the year and the reason for the changes:
Executive None N/A
Audit Mayo Jose 8. Ongsingco Resignation
Nomination None N/A
Rermuneration Mayo Jose B, Ongsingco Resignation
Others (specify} N/A N/A
4) Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the work done by each committee and the significant issues addressed during the year.

Executive + Recommendation on cash dividend of P0.10 per share, No issue was raised and
addressed.
Audit + Recommendation on the approval of quarterly financial
results;
e Recommendation on the re-appointment of External Auditor;
» Recommendation on the approval of the Company’s Annuat | No issue was raised and
Report {SEC Form 17-A); and addressed.
s Recommendation on the approval of the Company’'s Y2011
Audited Financial Statements;
« Adoption of an Audit Committee Charter
Nomination Screening and nomination of Directors (regular and | No issue was raised and
independent) for election at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. addressed.
Remuneration None None
Others {specify) N/A N/A
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5)

F.

1}

2)

Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each committee plans to undertake to address relevant issues in the improvement
or enforcement of effective governance for the coming year.

Executive None None
Audit Internal Audit Address requirement of Audit Charter
Nomination None None
Remuneration None None
Others (specify) N/A N/A

RiSK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Disclose the following:

(a)

{b)

{c)
(d)

(e)

Overall risk management philosophy of the company;

The Company’s objective is to protect and enhance the interest of its stakeholders by committing itself to the
principles of risk management, fairness, accountability and transparency. Thus, it fully embraces and practices
sound corporate governance in order to instill trust and confidence to the organization. (Article |, Amended
Manual on Corporate Governance)

The Keppel Group assessed the management risk through its quarterly desktop review of the financials of the
company. The Company including its subsidiaries and associates submits on monthly basis the financial
reports to the Keppel Group.

A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and
commenting on the adequacy thereof; None

Pericd covered by the review; None

How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing its effectiveness;
and

Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not. None. Any risk or issues shall be
raised and settled in the Audit Committee meetings.

Risk Policy

(a)

Company

Give a general description of the company’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the system {ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind
of risk:

(b) Group

Give a general description of the Group's risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s covered
by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:
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None None None
None None None
None None None
None None None
None None None

{c) Minority Shareholders

Indicate the principal risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ voting power.

Lack of control

3) Control System Set Up

{a} Company - None

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the
company:

None None None
None None None
None None None
None Nane None

{b) Group - None

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the
company:

Nene None None
None None None
None, None None
None None None
None None None

{c) Committee

Identify the committee or any other body of corporate governance in charge of laying down and supervising
these control mechanisms, and give details of its functions:

financial

1.Check all

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides oversight over
Management's activities in managing credit,
market, Hquidity, operational, legal and other
risks of the corporation which function includes
regular receipt from Management of
information on risk exposures and risk
management activities, (Section K(2), Article I